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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual report of 21 Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2010.

Given the rebounding economy and the low interest rate
environment, the property market is well supported. The property
agency business of the Group shows a stable performance in terms
of both revenue and gross profit in year 2010. During the year, the
Group has re-activated the securities trading and investments
business and was benefited from the prosperity of the securities
market.

In 2010, the Company has also effected capital reorganization and
several capital raising activities, including placings of new shares
for the sake of strengthening the financial backing and capital base
of the Group. Subsequent to year end of 2010, a rights issue has
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Chairman’s Statement
EERSE

also been effected which provided sufficient fund for (i) completion
of acquisition of subsidiaries engaged in provision of primary
property agency and related consultancy services in the PRC (the
“PRC Property Agency Business”) and (ii) redemption of convertible
note.

In the years to come, it is expected that the PRC Property Agency
Business will bring new sources of revenue to the Group and reduce
risk of over-reliance on property agency market in the Hong Kong.
We shall continue to ride on the Century 21 name to attract high
caliber talents to our ranks, expand the franchising network, adding
branches in prime location and promote the customers royalty.
Despite rising competition in the property market, we are confident
that the Group will able to respond promptly to the market changes.

We shall also endeavor to maintain a balance and best mix business
of the Group and continue to search for good and promising
investments which will enhance the performance and value of the
Group.

Finally, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
appreciation to our board members, shareholders, business
partners and bankers for their support throughout the years and
staff for their dedication and efforts to the continuous success of
the Group.

Ng Kai Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS AND OPERATION
REVIEW

PROPERTY AGENCY

Benefited from the low borrowing rate, influx of buyers from the
Mainland China and relaxed monetary policy, the property market
in Hong Kong put on a strong performance as both prices and
transaction volume. Revenue from property agency segment for
the year ended 31 December 2010 was HK$93.4 million whilst the
revenue from this segment for year 2009 was HK$91.6 million only.
Operating profits from the property agency segment for the year
under review amounted to HK$5.8 million (excluding any provision
for impairment loss on goodwill of HK$164 million) whilst the
operating profit for the year 2009 was HK$6.8 million. Slight
decrease in operating profit is contributed by an increase in overall
costs of the Group the improvement in economy.

TOY PRODUCTS TRADING

Unlike the property market, the business environment of consumer
industry remains challenging. Despite revenue generated from toy
trading segment increase this year and amounted to HK$126.6
million, being a surge of HK$38.6 million or 44.0% when compared
with last year, the gross margin of the segment decreases by
HK$1.0 million or 22.4% was mainly due to (i) price cut in order to
counteract the fierce competition from other manufacturers and
attract new customers and (ii) growing cost charged by the Group's
suppliers. In addition, the distribution costs and administrative
expenses hanged at a high level. As a result, toy trading segment
recorded operating loss of HK$11.9 million in year 2010.

SECURITIES TRADING AND INVESTMENTS

The business of securities trading and investment has been
reactivated since January 2010 with primary objective of gaining
capital growth. As at 31 December 2010, the Group has investments
held for trading and convertible notes designated as at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$56.0 million and HK$16.2 million,
respectively. The segment records operating profit of HK$13.2
million mainly arising from the net profit on investments held for
trading and gain on convertible notes designated as at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$2.5 million and HK$8.6 million,
respectively.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

PROPERTY AGENCY IN PRC-MATERIAL
ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES
SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF REPORTING
PERIOD

On 14 September 2010, the Company through its wholly-owned
subsidiary entered into a sales and purchase agreement to acquire
100% equity interest in Vigour Well Limited at a consideration of
HK$180.0 million (the "Acquisition”). The transaction was approved
by shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) on 6
December 2010 and completed on 18 January 2011. Vigour Well
Limited and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of
services including primary property agency and related consultancy
services to real estate developers on their primary residential, retail

and commercial real estate projects in the PRC.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

REVIEW OF RESULTS

The Group reported revenue of HK$220.0 million for the year ended
31 December 2010, being a surge of HK$40.4 million or 22.5%
when compared with that of last year. Gross profit slightly declined
from HK$31.0 million for the last year to HK$29.1 million. Increases
in revenue with mild decline in gross profit were principally due to
more order received for the toy trading segment which has a lower
gross margin.

Distribution costs and administrative expenses of the Group
increased by HK$1.4 million and HK$1.9 million, respectively. When
compared with year 2009, the finance cost in current year
decreased by HK$4.2 million with full repayment of the promissory
note in December 2009 and the redemption of the convertible notes
of aggregate principal amount of HK$60.0 million in July 2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Loss for this reporting year was HK$242.5 million, substantially
attributable to the noteworthy provision for impairment loss on
goodwill of HK$164.0 million arising from the acquisition of the
equity interest of Century 21 Hong Kong Limited and its associated
companies in previous year and provision for losses on litigation of
HK$83.5 million. The provision for losses on litigation, after taking
advice from solicitors acting for the Company, was estimated to
included (a) the judgment sum of HK$44.5 million and the interest
thereon; and (b) plaintiff costs and interest thereon.
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LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group maintained sufficient working capital as at 31 December
2010 with bank balances and cash of HK$43.0 million (31 December
2009: HK$97.2 million).

As at 31 December 2010, the Group has obligations under a finance
lease of HK$0.5 million (31 December 2009: Nil). In addition,
convertible note with principal amount of HK$70.0 million (the
“CN") remained outstanding as at 31 December 2010. The CN bear
interest of 2% per annum, mature on 23 July 2011 and carry rights
to convert the outstanding principal amount into shares of the
Company. The CN has been early redeemed in January 2011.

Gearing ratio, express as the percentage of total borrowings over
total capital, of the Group as at 31 December 2010 was 57.9% (31
December 2009: 33.7%). Total capital is calculated as total equity
plus total borrowings. The upsurge in gearing ratio is caused by
the substantial loss incurred by the Company which resulted in
reduction in equity.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEENWR D

CAPITAL STRUCTURE BEARERE

As at 31 December 2010, the Company has 112,695,574 shares of RZE—ZF+A=+—H XRAAB

HK$0.01 each (the “Shares”) in issue and the CN with principal 112,695,574 R F AR EE A 0.01 7T 2 B BTG

amount of HK$70 million are convertible into 8,373,205 Shares at  ([A&13]) + LA R A4 58 A% 70,000,0007T 2 Al ##

a conversion price of HK$8.36 per Share (subject to adjustments). REE - Al AR ETRRERS.367T (7] T LAFEE)
#14 48,373,205 % i {5 °

During the year, the share capital of the Company had the following FRN - NARRAAE T &

changes:

a. On 12 January 2010, pursuant to the general mandates a.

granted by the Shareholders on 13 November 2009, the
Company has allotted and issued a total of 72 million Shares
at a placing price of HK$0.15 per Share to not less than six
independent institutional, professional and/or individual
investors.

The placing price of HK$0.15 per Share represented a discount
of approximately 9.64% to the closing price of HK$0.166 per
Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 4 January 2010, being the date on
which the terms of the placing were fixed. The net placing
price, after deducting the relevant expenses, was
approximately HK$0.147 per Share and the aggregate nominal
value of the Shares issued was HK$720,000.

The net proceeds from the placing amounted to HK$10.6
million have been utilised as general working capital of the
Group.

b.  The Company has, pursuant to the general mandate granted b.

by the Shareholders in the special general meeting held on
15 April 2010 and a placing agreement dated 26 April 2010,
allotted and issued 375 million Shares at a placing price of
HK$0.133 per Share to not less than six independent
institutional, professional and/or individual investors.

The placing price of HK$0.133 per share represented a
discount of approximately 11.33% to the closing price of
HK$0.15 per Share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 26
April 2010, being the date on which the terms of the placing
were fixed. The net placing price, after deducting the relevant
expenses, was approximately HK$0.13 per Share and the
aggregate nominal value of the Shares issued was
HK$3,750,000.

The net proceeds from the placing was approximately
HK$48.8 million, out of which approximately HK$39.3 million
has been applied for redemption of the CN and approximately
HK$9.5 million have been utilised as the general working
capital comprising (a) professional fee of approximately
HK$3.5 million; (b) administrative expenses of approximately
HK$4.6 million; and (c) interest payment of approximately
HK$1.4 million for CN with principal amount of HK$70.0
million.
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Management Discussion and Analysis .

c. On 7 December 2010, pursuant to a special resolution passed
by the Shareholders, the Company effected a capital
reorganisation, which included (i) share consolidation of every
twenty shares of par value HK$0.01 each into one
consolidated share of par value HK$0.20 each; (ii) capital
reduction of the par value of each issued consolidated share
from HK$0.20 to HK$0.01 by cancellation of HK$0.19 of the
paid-up capital on each issued consolidated share; and (iii)
cancellation of the entire amount standing to the credit of
the share premium account of the Company.

A total of credit of approximately HK$364.97 million was
arisen from the capital reorganisation and HK$105.24 million
was applied to eliminate the accumulated losses of the
Company.

Subsequent to the year ended date, a rights issue on the basis of
ten rights Shares for every Share held on 17 December 2010 at a
price of HK$0.19 per Share approved by the Shareholders on 6
December 2010 was completed on 13 January 2011. Accordingly,
1,126,955,740 Shares were allotted and issued by the Company
and net proceeds of HK$208.6 million was raised of which
approximately HK$170.0 million has been utilised for payment of
consideration for acquisition of entire equity interest of Vigour Well
Limited, approximately HK$10.0 million has been set aside for final
payment of consideration after adjustments relating to the
completion account and approximately HK$28.6 million has been
utilised for the partial payment of early redemption of the CN.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEENWR DN

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2010, certain property, plant and machinery
with carrying values of approximately HK$0.5 million represented
assets held under finance leases. None of the assets of the Group
was under charge as at 31 December 2009.

EXPOSURE TO EXCHANGE RATES

Most of the Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities
are denominated in Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars and
Renminbi. The Group’s exposure to United States dollars currency
risk is minimal as Hong Kong dollars is pegged to United States
dollars. Nevertheless, operations and performances of the Group
might be affected by the fluctuation of Renminbi. Presently, the
Group does not have any currency hedging policy but will closely
monitor Renminbi exchange rate and take appropriate measures
to minimise any adverse impact that may be caused by its
fluctuation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis .

LITIGATION

A writ of summons dated 8 October 2004 was filed by Mr. Kwok
Chin Wing (“Mr. Kwok"), a former director of the Company, against
the Company in respect of the loans due from two former
subsidiaries of the Company namely, Rockapetta Industrial
Company Limited and Grand Extend Investment Limited, for a sum
of approximately HK$44.5 million together with accrued interests
thereof (the "Action”).

As at 31 December 2009, the Action was pending trial at the High
Court of Hong Kong SAR with the trial date of the Action was fixed
in January 2011. The solicitors and counsel acting for the Company
had reviewed the pleadings and all evidence disclosed in the Action
and they still hold good for their advice previously delivered to the
Company. With the benefit of the advice of the solicitors and
counsel acting for the Company, the directors of the Company
formed the opinion that Mr. Kwok did not have a valid claim against
the Company and therefore it was unlikely to have any material
adverse financial impact on the Group. Therefore, no provision for
any liabilities was made as at 31 December 2009.

On 2 March 2011, judgment was handed down by the Court of
First Instance of the High Court and was awarded in favour of Mr.
Kwok (the “Judgment”). It was adjudged that the Company shall
pay Mr. Kwok the sum of HK$44.5 million together with interest
thereon and that there will be an order nisi for costs against the
Company on a party and party basis.

On 10 March 2011, the Company has received a statutory demand
for payment of judgment sum of HK$44.5 million to Mr. Kwok within
21 days. It is stated in the statutory demand that if it is not complied,
the Company will be deemed to be unable to pay its debts and
Mr. Kwok will take actions against the Company to recover the
judgment sum of HK$44.5 million, the interest thereon and costs,
including proceedings under the provisions of Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance for the winding up of the Company. After
seeking advice from its solicitors and counsel, the directors
considered that the Company has good grounds for appeal, and
has instructed its solicitors to launch an appeal against the
Judgment. On 28 March 2011, a Notice of Appeal was filed with
the Court of Appeal and served on the parties concerned. Pending
the appeal, the Company has also instructed its solicitors to take
appropriate actions in response to the Judgment and the statutory
demand, including an application for a stay of execution of the
Judgment pending appeal.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Regarding the matter of costs and interest, the Company issued
summons returnable before the trial judge on 11 April 2011 seeking
variation of the costs order nisi and at the same time Mr. Kwok
also issued summons returnable before the trial judge on the same
day to deal with the matter of costs and interest.

Regarding the application for stay of execution of the Judgment
pending appeal, with the advice from its solicitors, it is expected
that such application will be finally disposed of within 1 to 2 months
after the date these consolidated financial statements have been
authorised for issue. The Court may order a stay of execution of a
Judgment pending appeal on condition. However, the Court may
require the payment into the Court of the judgment sum and
interest or its provision of a bank guarantee for the same amount
as condition of stay. Should the Company fail in the application for
stay of execution to the trial judge, the Company may try to make
the application to the Court of Appeal.

Regarding the appeal, it is expected that such appeal would be
heard and disposed of by the Court of Appeal within 6 to 12 months
from the date the consolidated financial statements have been
authorised for issue. The solicitors and counsel acting for to the
Company hold good of the likelihood of success of such appeal.
Should the appeal succeed, the Company is not liable to pay the
judgment sum together with interest thereon to Mr. Kwok and the
Company is entitled to recover the costs from Mr. Kwok.

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had 33
employees and 218 agents. To attract, retain
and motivate its employees, the Group has
developed effective remuneration policies that
are subject to review on regular basis. The
Group’'s employees are remunerated with
competitive packages which are in line with
prevailing industry practice and individual
performance. Furthermore, share option and
performance-based bonus scheme are also in
place to recognise the outstanding employees.

21 HOLDINGS LIMITED
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Kai Man, aged 56, joined the Company as an executive
director in July 2008 and has been designated as the Chairman
with effect from 1 July 2009. He is also appointed as the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ng holds a master
degree from the London School of Economics & Political Sciences,
University of London in the United Kingdom. Mr. Ng had held senior
positions in Mandarin Property Consultants Limited, The Chase
Manhattan Bank, N.A., World Trade Group and The Bank of Canton.
He possesses extensive experience in real estate industry and is
the founder of Century 21 Hong Kong Limited.

Mr. Cheng YukWo, aged 50, joined the Company as an independent
non-executive director in October 2007 and has been re-designated
as an executive Director with effect from 1 May 2010. He is also
appointed as the director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Mr. Cheng is a fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Ontario, Canada. He is the managing director of a
certified public accounting practice limited and the proprietor of a
certified public accountant practice in Hong Kong Mr. Cheng holds
a Master of Science (Economics) degree in Accounting and Finance
and a Bachelor of Arts (Honours) degree in Accounting.

Mr. Ha Kee Choy, Eugene, aged 54, joined the Company as an
executive director in July 2004 and is also appointed as the director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ha is the director of a
certified public accounting practice limited and the director of an
advisory services limited in Hong Kong. Mr. Ha holds a Master's
degree in business administration and is a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Mr. Ha possesses
over 20 years of experience in the finance and banking industry
and acts as director of a number of private and listed companies in
Hong Kong.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert, aged 54, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in July 2004. Mr. Chui holds a
Bachelor’'s degree in Commerce (major in Accounting) and is a
practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr. Chui is a
fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom.
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Senior Management Profile
EREEEERE

Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong, aged 57 joined the Company as an
independent non-executive Director in September 2010. Mr. Lam
holds Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of Hong Kong
and has been a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong for over 30 years'
experience. Mr. Lam is a Justice of the Peace with Bronze Bauhinia
Star (BBS) and a solicitor of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region. He is currently a fellow of the Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, Ex-Officio Member of Heung Yee Kuk New
Territories, member of Buildings Ordinance Appeal Tribunal Panel,
a member of Panel of Adjudicators, Obscene Articles Tribunal and
a Civil Celebrant of Marriages.

Mr. Lui SiuTsuen, Richard, aged 55, joined the Company as an
independent non-executive director in June 2009. Mr. Lui is a fellow
member of each of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants in the United Kingdom and an associate of the Institute
of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He holds a Master
of Business Administration degree from the University of Adelaide
in Australia. He has over 25 years of experience in property
investment, corporate finance and media and entertainment
business.
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Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
PRACTICE

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board"”) considers
that good corporate governance is essential for enhancing
accountability and transparency of a company to the investing public
and other stakeholders. Therefore, the Company is committed to
maintain high standard corporate governance practices and has
complied with the code provisions set out in the Code on Corporate
Governance Practices (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14
to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) throughout
the year ended 31 December 2010 except for the deviations
described in this Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of
conduct regarding the directors’ securities transaction. Having
made specific enquiry, all directors confirmed that they fully
complied with the Model Code throughout the year.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is vested with the key roles of formulating the Group's
corporate strategic directions and policies; monitoring the financial
performance and internal control system of the Group and
overseeing the performance of management, who is delegated with
the responsibilities of executing the Board's decision and in-charging
day-to-day operation. In discharging its responsibilities, the Board
meets regularly and acts in good faith, with due diligence and care.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements of the Company.

On 30 April 2010, Ms. Ma Wai Man, Catherine, has resigned as an
executive director of the Company and on 1 May 2011. Mr. Cheng
Yuk Wo has been re-designed as an executive director of the
Company. On 9 September 2010, Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong has been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the
Company.
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. Corporate Governance Report
TRELRE

The Board currently comprises three executive directors and three EESRH-RPTES A -RBEVIENITESA
independent non-executive directors, the biographies of whose are K HERHNAFREIZEZ14E - 2EESY
set out on pages 13 to 14 of this annual report. All the directors are REBZITRAER  EETRTEERIL BAEE
high caliber executives with diversified industry expertise and bring EREBRMHELE BE-_T—ZF+-A=1+
a wide range of skills and experience to the Group. The composition —BIEFE EFgsEAMRSESRNESTS SR
of the Board and their respective attendance in the Board meetings MEMZEESR 2 HABALFERET

and other committee meetings during the year ended 31 December

2010 are as follows:

No. of meetings attended/held

HEBITERRH
Regular Audit Remuneration
full board Committee Committee
meetings meetings meetings
Exgap BEREEE FMZEESE
REE =f =
Executive directors HITEE
Ng Kai Man (Chairman) RER (F&) 4/4 — —
Ha Kee Choy, Eugene BHA 4/4 — 11
Cheng Yuk Wo (re-designated as HHEMA—E—ZF
executive director on 1 May 2010) AA—HRATARITES) 2/2 — —
Ma Wai Man, Catherine FEHR_ZE—ZF
(resigned on 30 April 2010) WA =1+HEE) 2/2 — —
Independent non-executive directors BV IFHTEE
Chui ChiYun, Robert EEC 4/4 2/2 1/1
Lui SiuTsuen, Richard B IKR 4/4 2/2 —
Lam Kwok Cheong MEE (RZE—ZF
(appointed on 9 September 2010) NANBEZT) 1/1 —
Cheng Yuk Wo (re-designated as B (AT —FF
executive director on 1 May 2010) AA—HRATARITES) 2/2 11 mn

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER EFRERITHAR

Pursuant to Code A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and BECEFREA2 G ERERITREE 2 ABRE
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be REA B AERR— AT -
performed by the same individual.
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Corporate Governance Report

Mr. Ng Kai Man (“Mr. Ng”) has been designated as the Chairman
of the Company with effect from 1 July 2009 and takes up the
leadership role to ensure that the Board works effectively in
discharging its responsibilities and that all key and appropriate
issues are discussed by the Board in a timely manner. Mr. Ng, who
is the founder of the property agency business of the Group and
has considerable experience in real estate industry, also carries
out the function of chief executive officer of the Group. Taken into
account that there is a strong and independent non-executive
element on the Board and a clear division of responsibility in running
the business of the Group, the Board considers that this structure
will not impair the balance of power and authority between the
Board and the management of the Group.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

None of the non-executive directors of the Company is appointed
for specific term which is deviated from Code A.4.1 of the CG Code.
However, as the directors are subject to the retirement by rotation
provisions under the bye-laws of the Company, the Board considers
that sufficient measures have been in place to ensure that the
Company’s corporate governance practices are no less exacting
than the CG Code.

During 1 May 2010 to 8 September 2010, the Company was not in
compliance with Rule 3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules regarding
the minimum number of independent non-executive Directors and
audit committee members. Following the appointment of Mr. Lam
Kwok Cheong as an independent non-executive director as well as
a member of the audit committee, the Company has complied with
the requirement of a minimum number of independent non-
executive directors and audit committee members under Rules
3.10(1) and 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-executive
directors of the Company, namely, Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert
(Committee Chairman), Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed on 9
September 2010) and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard. The main role and
functions of the Audit Committee are to review the financial
information of the Company, to oversee the Company’s financial
reporting system and internal control procedure and maintain
relations with the auditors of the Company.
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In year 2010, the Audit Committee held two meetings. The first
one was attended by Mr. Chui ChiYun, Robert, Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen, Richard. During the meeting, the annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2009 was
reviewed with the auditors of the Company and the report on the
internal control system for year 2009 was evaluated. The second
meeting was attended by Mr. Chui ChiYun, Robert and Mr. Lui Siu
Tsuen, Richard and the interim results of the Group for the six
months ended 30 June 2010 was discussed in the meeting.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was set up with
key responsibilities of recommending the policy and structure for
remuneration of directors and senior management and determining
the remuneration package of executive directors and senior
management.

The Remuneration Committee is composed of Mr. Ha Kee Choy,
Eugene (Committee Chairman), Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo and Mr. Chui
ChiYun, Robert. The committee member met once in the year ended
31 December 2010 for reviewing the emolument of the directors
and senior management.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not established a nomination committee. The
Board as a whole is responsible for considering and approving the
appointment of its members and will meet to discuss when
nomination of new director(s) is received or when circumstances
require. In considering the suitability of a candidate for directorship,
the Board will take into account the candidate’'s qualification,
experience, expertise and knowledge as well as the prevailing
composition, structure and size of the Board and the requirements
under the Listing Rules.

INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that an effective internal control system
which is designed to monitor and response appropriately to
significant risk, to safeguard assets, to provide reasonable
assurance from fraud and errors and to ensure compliance of
applicable law and regulations is essential for effective and efficient
operations of a company. Furthermore, the internal control system
is designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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The Group has in place an effective internal control system which
encompasses sound control environment, appropriate segregation
of duties, well-defined policies and procedures, close monitoring
and is reviewed and enhanced by the management at regular
intervals.

The Board, with the assistance of the management, has conducted
a review on the effectiveness of the internal control system and,
in particulars, the internal control system and procedures under
COSO Framework and a key business cycle of the property agency
business segment were reviewed for the year ended 31 December
2010. Based on the report on the findings which include
recommendations for further improvement, the directors were
satisfied that the Group has operated an effective internal control
system during the year under review.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2010, remuneration in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided by the auditors of the

Company to the Group are approximately HK$708,000 (2009:
HK$760,000) and HK$355,000 (2009: HK$169,000) respectively.
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. Directors’ Report

EEHE

The directors present their annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2010.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company and its subsidiaries
are principally engaged in provision of property agency and related
services, trading of toy, gift and premium products and securities
trading and investments.

Details of the activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 36 to
the consolidated financial statements. An analysis of revenue and
results by principal activities and geographical locations of the Group
are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2010 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
on page 31.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2010.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page
34.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF THE COMPANY'’S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company'’s listed
securities.

| ANNUAL REPORT 2010

EERNRLRE L FRREEAALTRANE
AR (A%E)BE-F—TFT-A=+—AL
FEZEBRIBRE -

TEXRK
AARNH—MRERRAT  EHBAREENE

REYERELEERE A - BREEREE
URFEHAEBRKRE -

EMBRABRZEBHBEHEN
BASETEXB MR
RER A M B wRM O -

A SRR E36 °
A B D 2 W R EEDITE

EXEBENDET

AEERHE_T-TF+_A=+—HLEFEZX
@ﬁm%mEZﬁé%E%ﬁ%°

EETRBEABE_T—
EEZRE -

M BMERRE

ZE+_A=+—HBL

AEBEZWE  BERRBNFRAEY 2 FBEHN
RAMBWRME7 -

SN

RARBRARFRNES 2 FIBHNEGRE
FE27 °

A TS R Y

it 8
AEBETREEZEDRNEUE 2 EAREED
& o

BE W
M 7%

EHB/EAQFZ L

\

RABREEFAMBRARNFALEBE -
BEARBEMN LEHES

e




PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company's
bye-laws (the “Bye-laws") or the laws of Bermuda which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Kai Man (Chairman)
Mr. Ha Kee Choy, Eugene
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
(re-designated as an executive director on 1 May 2010)
Ms. Ma Wai Man, Catherine (resigned on 30 April 2010)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chui ChiYun, Robert
Mr. Lui SiuTsuen, Richard
Mr. Lam Kwok Cheong (appointed on 9 September 2010)
Mr. Cheng Yuk Wo
(re-designated as an executive director on 1 May 2010)

The Directors retiring by rotation in accordance with Bye-law 99 of
the Bye-laws are Mr. Chui ChiYun, Robert and Mr. Lui Siu Tsuen,
Richard, both of them will, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

No directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has any service contract which is not determinable
by the Company within one year without payment of compensation
(other than statutory compensation).

The non-executive directors are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Bye-laws.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-
executive directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Listing Rules”) and considers all of the independent non-executive
directors are independent.

Directors’ Report .
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Directors’ Report
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests and short positions of the
directors and chief executive of the Company and their associates
in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) were as follows:

Long positions in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company (the “Shares”)

EECHESRER

RZF-FFF_A=1+—H ARFEZF THK
RENEEZBEALRARR REBEEE (E
ERBFFLHEGRD ([EH LB GG EXVED)
ZBAy ~ R RERER 2R ORRIT

WAL A SREESS0.01 72 LB (H13]) 2
A

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity underlying Shares shareholding
EEnE 14 HERHEE BAKRET DL
Ng Kai Man (“Mr. Ng") Beneficial owner 8,373,205 7.43%
(note)
RER(R%ED EHEAA (Bt =E)
note: B EE -

Being the number of Shares issuable to Mr. Ng pursuant to a convertible
note issued by the Company. Details of the convertible note are disclosed
in note 25(A) to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2010, none of the
directors or chief executive of the Company or any of their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying share and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations as recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the
“Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTSTO PURCHASE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save for the convertible note held by Mr. Ng as disclosed in the
section “Directors’ Interest in Securities” of this Directors’ Report,
at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the directors of
the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in, or debenture of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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Directors’ Report
EERE

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN BEECEARAHNES
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 32 to the consolidated financial BEEVBMEMANRAESRE(EE2ES
statements and the section "Directors’ Interest in Securities” of ] — SR REN  NARHEEMRNEA A
this Directors’ Report, no contracts of significance to which the BET AR FARFRDABR - BEARRFE
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a FEEAHEREEAF R ZEREY -
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly

or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of the year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN EERNBEERBEZ2ER
COMPETING BUSINESS

Interests of the directors in competing businesses to the Group as RZE—ZTF+_A=1+—H0 EFREEBE 5
at 31 December 2010 required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule FEBF - ARE LTRAES 10 E 2 EEH

8.10 of the Listing Rules were set out as below:— FIEAR -
Nature of Nature of
Name of Director Name of entity competing business interest
EEns ERER HEEKZMHE ERME
Ng Kai Man Century 21 Best provision of agency services director and shareholder
Mortgage Limited for mortgage financing
REER L2 RBEFIEARLF ARBEERERERS EERRE
Century 21 Singapore provision of franchise and director and shareholder
Holdings Pte Limited property agency services
in Singapore
TR NI R AT A EERRRE
KRR R
Century 21 Real Estate provision of franchise and director and shareholder
of Taiwan Ltd. property agency services
in Taiwan
AR TNEE RIS 2 IR D REEBRHEFITEER EERRRE
BERAA E Y

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors was interested in bR EXEBREIN  SIBmEENEAEEZEBEN K
any business, apart from the business of the Group, which AREENEEXEERF 2 EANER BAEREZ
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with EBIN PHEE R o

the business of the Group.
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EERE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2010, the interest and short positions of those
positions of any person (other than the directors and chief executive
of the Company) in the shares or underlying shares of the Company

representing five percent or more in the issued share capital of

FERR

W=Z—BH+=A=+—8  UTA+(KAT
FFRTRARBIN) WAL TR IR
BB R R AR D T B (TRRAE% A E 7 iRk
W TR ERRA D TR 8 2 T 40 5 6 ) S8 3361

the Company and recorded in the register required to be kept by AFEZERM:
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
Long position in the Shares R E
Approximate
Number percentage of
Name of shareholders Capacity of Shares held shareholding
RERERE g0 BERGEE BARET D
Get Nice Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 600,000,000 48.40%
corporations (Note 1) (Note 3)
IR AR A A TEHEE 2 S (Hat1) (Ha£3)
Get Nice Incorporated Interest of controlled 600,000,000 48.40%
corporations (Note 1) (Note 3)
TEHEE 2 S (Hat1) (Ha£3)
Get Nice Securities Limited Beneficial owner 600,000,000 48.40%
(Note 1) (Note 3)
HEIrE R AR AR EHEAA (Hat1) (Ha£3)
Yeung Sau Shing, Albert Founder of a trust 526,955,740 42.51%
(Note 2) (Note 3)
BEK —IBfEFEZ 8IS A (Hfzt2) (Ha£3)
STC International Limited Trustee 526,955,740 42.51%
(Note 2) (Note 3)
FFEA (Hfzt2) (Ha£3)
Million Way Holdings Limited Interest of controlled 526,955,740 42.51%
corporations (Note 2) (Note 3)
REHEE 2 S (Hfzt2) (Ha£3)
Win Move Group Limited Interest of controlled 526,955,740 42.51%
corporations (Note 2) (Note 3)
REHEE 2 S (Hfzt2) (Ha£3)
Emperor Capital Group Limited Interest of controlled 526,955,740 42.51%
corporations (Note 2) (Note 3)
REFFEEFRAA REHEE 2 S (Hfzt2) (Ha£3)
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FERRE ®

EERE

(Continued)
Long position in the Shares (Continued) BR172 1t E (&)
Approximate
Number percentage of
Name of Shareholders Capacity of Shares held shareholding
RERERE ) BFERGEE BARET D
Emperor Securities Limited Beneficial owner 526,955,740 42.51%
B (Note 2) (Note 3)
REFH (BE)BBRAA BEnAA (Htzt2) (Kt7E3)
Luk Siu Man, Semon Interest of spouse 526,955,740 42.51%
(Note 2) (Note 3)
e = [ (Ktst2) (K5£3)
Sanfull Securities Limited Beneficial owner 157,900,000 12.74%
N N (Note 4) (Note 3)
MEEFARAR EmEA A (Ktzta) (Bt7E3)
Kwong Chi Fai, Gorman Beneficial owner 157,900,000 12.74%
N (Note 4) (Note 3)
iy EREEA (Ktzt4) (Kt7E3)
Lo Ming Chi Charles Beneficial owner 78,900,000 6.36%
N (Note 4) (Note 3)
LIRS En#EEA (Kst4) (Kt5£3)
Notes: Bt
1. These are the rights Shares which Get Nice Securities Limited has 1. ZERBENEHFERAFRDIREBEARDRMLITES

underwritten pursuant the underwriting agreement dated 14
September 2010 in relation to the rights issue entered into between
the Company, and Get Nice Securities Limited and Emperor Securities
Limited as the underwriters (the “Underwriting Agreement”). Get
Nice Securities Limited is wholly-owned by Get Nice Incorporated
which in turn is wholly-owned by Get Nice Holdings Limited.

These are the rights Shares which Emperor Securities Limited has
underwritten pursuant the Underwriting Agreement. Emperor
Securities Limited is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Emperor
Capital Group Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Stock
Exchange. 47.90% of the shares of Emperor Capital Group Limited
are held by Win Move Group Limited. The entire issued share capital
of Win Move Group Limited is held by Million Way Holdings Limited,
which in turn is held by STC International Limited on trust for The
Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust (“AY Trust"”). Dr. Yeung Sau Shing,
Albert, as founder of the AY Trust, and Ms. Luk Siu Man, Semon, as
the spouse of Dr. Yeung Sau Shing, Albert, are deemed to be
interested in the 526,955,740 rights Shares by virtue of the
underwriting commitment of Emperor Securities Limited.

The percentage of shareholding in the Company is calculated with
reference to the number of Shares to be in issue immediately after
completion of the rights issue.

These are the rights Shares under sub-underwriting.

BRATIRKEFSR (BB BRAR (EABHRA)
REZT—TFNA+EA BRI L2 B R
([B 8] B HARRR G - BT EHFBR AR
fiGet Nice Incorporated® & #i & @ M Get Nice
Incorporatedfl| R & IF =R ER AT 2 EHAE ©

ZERREECREBEEHEHBERH 2 ERRG - RE
RREREFLFEEGRARZEAEZENBLAR - &
BORBZMET - REFLFEBAERARAZ
47.90% %15 FAWin Move Group Limited# 74 ° Win
Move Group Limited% #BE, #1TA% 2N 83 Million Way
Holdings Limited# % * M Million Way Holdings
Limited Bl 1 STC International Limited SA{S 5 /5 =%
AThe Albert Yeung Discretionary Trust ([AY
Trust)) #48 < BZAIE L (AY TrustZ BISZ A) K FE
NeLT (BERIET2EM) BREZ B #HERER
W8 /15 75526,955, 740 % LLAR AR 1D -

RARBZBEBA L2 EEREHIRTRIEEE
TzBRHEBEE -

ZEREDBEZHRERD -
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EEHE

SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the share option scheme of the Company are set out
in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements. There were no
outstanding share options at 1 January 2010 and 31 December
2010 and no share options were granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2010.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE
COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of contributed surplus if:

(a)  the Company is, or would after payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(b) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby
be less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share
capital and share premium.

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves did not
have any reserves for distribution (2009: Nil).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND
SUPPLIERS

The percentage of purchases of the Group attributable to the largest
supplier and the five largest suppliers combined are 62.7% and
74.8% respectively.

The percentage of turnover of the Group attributable to the largest
customer and the five largest customers combined are 9.4% and
40.2% respectively.

None of the directors, their associates or shareholders (which to
the knowledge of the directors own more than five percent of the
Company’s share capital) had any interest in the five largest
suppliers or customers of the Group.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the directors, as at the date of this
report the Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules.

EVENT AFTERTHE END OF
REPORTING PERIOD

Details of significant events occurring after the reporting period
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

AUDITORS

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu was appointed as auditor of the Company
in 9 February 2011 to fill in the casual vacancy arising from the
resignation of JBPB & Co. (formerly known as Grant Thornton).

A resolution will be submitted at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
as auditors of the Company.

On behalf of the Board
Ng Kai Man
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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. Independent Auditor’s Report

B B E

Deloitte.
=

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF 21 HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
21 Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 31 to
111, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2010, and the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90 of the
Bermuda companies Act, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

AU DITOR'S RESPONSIBI LITY (Continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and
true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’'s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 December
2010 and of the Group's loss and cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and
have been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to note 2 to the
financial statements which indicates that the Group incurred a net
loss of HK$242,505,000 for the year ended 31 December 2010
and, as of that date, the Group's current liabilities exceeded its
current assets by HK$42,761,000. The directors have been
implementing various measures as disclosed in note 2 to
consolidated financial statements to improve the Group's financial
position. The directors of the Company consider that after taking
into account these steps, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and its financial obligations as and
when they fall due. However, certain of these measures have not
yet been successfully completed and accordingly, these conditions,
along with other matters set forth in note 2 to the consolidated
financial statements, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty
which may cast significant doubt about the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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OTHER MATTERS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2009 were audited by other auditors, who
expressed an unmodified opinion on these statements on 20 April
2010.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2011

| ANNUAL REPORT 2010

HitE1|

EEEBE_TENFT_A=+—HILFEZ#HF
EUBHRRBEMZEMN (AR T -FFOA -
THRREBRERREZRERZER) E& -

mE e MERSEEAIT
B BEAD
)

—Z——%=A=+H




Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income .

SEEERBER

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

2010 2009
—E-ZfF —TENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B E BET T BT T
Revenue WS 8 219,960 179,550
Cost of sales $HE KA (190,890) (148,600)
Gross profit EF 29,070 30,950
Other income HAb YA 2,962 1,223
Other gains H Ak 2= 10 19,184 —
Distribution costs Pal =[N (7,200) (5,832)
Administrative expenses THAE (34,627) (32,769)
Provision for losses on litigation AR B B 24 (83,500) —
Impairment loss on goodwill mEZREBE 18 (164,000) —
Fair value loss on derivative AR ERITE T A M
component of convertible notes ZANVFEEE 25 - (127,262)
Gain on disposal of non-current HES AIFIEHE RS
assets classified as held for sale A E 2 W 23 4,084 —
Finance costs W%sEA 11 (5,854) (10,039)
Loss before tax BRELRTEE (239,881) (143,729)
Income tax expense Fr1S B 2 12 (2,624) (559)
Loss and total comprehensive AEEEBEEMEARI AR
expense for the year 13 (242,505) (144,288)
Loss per share FREE
— Basic and diluted — BEAREE 16 (HK$2.3) (HK$5.5)
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. Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e AR R R

At 31 December 2010 R-—ZE—ZTF+_-_A=+—H

2010 2009
—E-=F —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M FE BET T BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FkRBEE
Property, plant and equipment VI -~ B REE 17 1,173 183
Goodwill GEES 18 92,000 256,000
93,173 256,183
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Trade and other receivables JE LA BR TR % EL At i W FR TR 19 42,892 42,260
Investments held for trading BIEEBEZIKE 20 56,009 —
Convertible notes designated as at IEEE AT EY R A
fair value through profit or loss Z AR EI& 21 16,153 —
Bank balances and cash IRITHEHBR KRS 22 43,041 97154
158,095 139,414
Non-current assets classified HEHIEHEZERBEE
as held for sale 23 — 14,106
158,095 153,520
CURRENT LIABILITIES nBAE
Trade and other payables JE <5 BR 30 I EL Ath FE A< BOE 24 130,627 47469
Tax payable FEHIE 1,639 531
Convertible notes AR AR ik 25 68,411 —
Obligations under a finance lease REMEEM 26 179 —
200,856 48,000
NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES)/ASSETS %8 (BE) ‘EEZE (42,761) 105,520
TOTAL ASSET LESS CURRENT EEABRRDERS
LIABILITIES 50,412 361,703
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBEE
Convertible notes AR =R 25 - 122,054
Obligations under a finance lease BEHEEME 26 301 —
301 122,054
50,111 239,649
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=

At 31 December 2010 R—ZE—ZTF+_-_A=+—H

2010 2009
—ZE-ZF —EENF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
b= BT T BT T
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BAR&EE

Share capital [N 27 1,127 18,069
Reserves (E 48,984 221,580

Equity attributable to owners RRAREB AL
of the Company 50,111 239,649

The consolidated financial statements on pages 31 to 111 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
30 March 2011 and are signed on its behalf by:

Ng Kai Man
REE
Director

EF

RENBEZEFNNEZGEEMBRRN T ——F
SASTHEE=SHEYA TIEERRESFS
#E

Ha Kee Choy, Eugene
BEHA
Director

EF
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. Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
MERERBEX

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—_T—ZTF+_A=1+—HIEFE

Convertible
Share Share Capital Contributed notes equity Accumulated
capital premium reserve surplus reserve losses Total
TRREE
BRE  ROHBE  EARE BB  EERE  BHFR ER4E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRETT  BETr  A%TR A%t B%Tr  A%Tr BETn
At 1 January 2009 RZEENF—A—H 156,456 168,098 2,099 — 14,679 (284,879) 56,453
Loss for the year and total FEEBBRAER
comprehensive expense 2HEFATAR
for the year = = = — — (144,288) (144,288)
Elimination of accumulated RHA AT A2 A
losses of the Company 2iER
upon capital reduction (155,830) (168,098) — — — 323,928 —
Issue of shares upon placing AR EEMETRH
of shares 1,988 39,677 — — — — 41,565
Issue of shares upon conversion of E{BR-FE——%F
the May 2011 Convertible Notes ~ WTHARZEMH1TRH 1,000 144,686 - - - - 145,686
Shares issued under rights issue ~ RARMETRG 14,455 130,097 - - - — 144,552
Share issue expense R ETER - (4,319) = = = = 4,319)
At 31 December 2009 RZZTHE
+-R=1—-H 18,069 310,041 2,099 — 14,679 (105,239) 239,649
Loss for the year and total FEEBBRAER
comprehensive expense PERXAE
for the year - - - - - (242,505)  (242,505)
Issue of shares upon placing AR EEmETRR
of shares 4,470 56,205 - - - - 60,675
Share issue expense RHETER - (1,272) - - - - (1,272)
Capital reduction HIRRA (21,412) - - 21412 - - -
Share premium reduction R EE - (364,974) - 364,974 - - -
Partial redemption of BOSHTRRER
convertible notes - - - - (6,775) 339 (6,436)
Transfer S - - - (105,239) - 105,239 -
At 31 December 2010 R-B-2%
+-B=+-H 1,127 - 2,099 281,147 7904 (242,166) 50,111
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows .

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE_-Z

GERERER

—EET_A=+—HLFE

2010 2009
—E-FF —ZETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T B IT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KESEE
Loss before tax B A% A 18 (239,881) (143,729)
Adjustments for: PR FIERE
Depreciation of property, plant W BEREZHBITE
and equipment 127 97
Depreciation of investment BREYHETE
properties - 376
Impairment loss on goodwill Fﬁégz%ﬁfﬁféﬂé 164,000 —
Provision for losses on litigation SRFABIR 2 B R 83,500 —
Gain on disposal of non-current HEIARFIELE 2R E EWE
assets classified as held for sale (4,084) —
Impairment loss on trade FEUBR R 2 BB
receivables 77 399
Reversal of impairment loss on FEWBR SR 2 B E B R
trade receivables (820) (676)
Finance costs MBER 5,854 10,039
Fair value loss on derivative AMREBETET AT c AT EEBE
component of convertible notes - 127,262
Fair value gains of convertible notes EERATEF ABm 2 TR ERE
designated as at fair value AN R &
through profit or loss (8,619) —
Fair value gains of investments RIEEERE 2 A FEKE
held for trading (2,506) —
Dividend income from equity securities xR FFH 2 B B U A (1,535) =
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREEZ (W) EBE
plant and equipment (23) 294
Gain on partial redemption of FE M 2o AT AR B4R 2 W s
convertible notes (8,059) —
Interest income F B WA (11) (1)
Operating cash flows before BESBHH o KERERE
movements in working capital (11,980) (5,939)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and R LT B 3R e L At B W SR IERL > (3 hn)
other receivables m (14,975)
Increase in investments held BIEEERER M
for trading (53,503)
Decrease in amount due to a director B —REZEBRKIBR - (862)
Increase in trade and other payables JRE 1T BR 5% R L 4th & USSR 38 N 2,613 15,831
Cash used in operations KEXBMBARS (62,759) (5,945)
Income taxes paid BT E (1,516) (4,123)
Interest paid EXEE (2,009) (6,244)
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING KRETHMBAZESFE
ACTIVITIES (66,284) (16,312)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—TF+_A=+—HIFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from disposal of non-current
assets classified as held for sale

Proceeds on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Proceeds on disposal of convertible
notes designated as at fair value
through profit or loss

Interest received

Dividend income received

Purchase of convertible notes
designated as at fair value through
profit or loss

Purchase of property,
plant and equipment

Deposits received for disposal of
investment properties

NET CASH FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Gross proceeds on issue of shares
under share placing

Consideration for partial redemption of
convertible notes

Share issue expenses

Proceeds from issue of convertible notes

Net proceeds on issue of shares
under rights issue

Repayment of promissory note

NET CASH FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING OF THEYEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR,
REPRESENTING BANK
BALANCES AND CASH
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16,370

47

16,680
1
1,635

(24,214)

(661)

9,768

60,675

(57,000)
(1,272)

2,403

(54,113)

97,154

43,041

2009
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HK$'000
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41

41,565

(4,319)
18,000

144,552

(100,000)

99,798

85,266

11,888

97,154



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE—ZFT—ZTF+_A=1+—HIEFE

The Company was incorporated in Bermuda as an exempted
company with limited liability and its shares are listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office and principal place of
business of the Company are disclosed in the section headed
“Corporate Information” in the annual report.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities
of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 36.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group, the directors of the Company have given careful
consideration to the liquidity position of the Group in light of
the fact that the Group incurred a net loss of HK$242,505,000
for the year ended 31 December 2010 and, as of that date,
the Group's current liabilities exceeded its current assets by
approximately HK$42,761,000. The following circumstances
may affect the Group's financial position:

(@) A statutory demand under Section 178(1)(a) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance was served on the
Company on 10 March 2011 demanding for the payment
of HK$44.5 million (the “Debt”) to Kwok Chin Wing (“Mr.
Kwok") pursuant to the judgment by the Court of First
Instance of the High Court on 2 March 2011 awarded in
favor of Mr. Kwok regarding a writ of summons dated 8
October 2004 filed by Mr. Kwok against the Company
in respect of the loans due from two former subsidiaries
of the Company for a sum of approximately HK$44.5
million together with accrued interest thereof
(*Judgment”), details of which are set out in note 33
and the details of the liability are set out in note 24 to
the consolidated financial statements. Under the
statutory demand, the Company is required to settle
the Debt before 31 March 2011 and should the Company
fail to make the settlement, Mr. Kwok shall take out
actions against the Company to recover the Debt
(including interest and costs);

ARABRR—FNRBRETMRLZERAA] -
HERONEBBBAEXSAERAE (BRA])
£ o RRRZEMAPFFER AL N T BEHE I
DERFREREEER]BAIA -

RAMBRRIANEE 2] - MAEBTIAARATE
2R -

ARABRREER AT - KB AR %1570
M EE368 51 -

FEREAEEZGREMIEHRER - ARAES
ERAEERNEE—_T—ZTF+=-A=+—H
I FE 2 B8 F B 242,505,000t R E =
%A AEEZRBAERERBEES LS
¥42,761,0007T + MEARNEE 2 RENE AR
ELBEZR - U TERAREEFEREE
B RS AR M

(a) RIEBEBRFUEHI178(1) @IKFTE L 2
FEEBEREEEER T ——F=A+
HXEARDRA r ERIMAFHEE
44,500,0007T ([ET5]) FBREELLE
(IBEE]D - BREERRDEEDR
—E——F-A-BAYUBEER_ZTT
ME+ANBRARREEEMSKE
ARaMERHB AR IR ERLEE
44,500,000 T FERTF 2 - fEHEAI
HEDBEEBF ([ZER]) - FHEHER
FizE33 - BRABEH 2 BE N 24 -
BEBEEEEREEE  ARARBERZE
——F=A=+—HBEES  HMAA
RIARBE(EIE - LR AR RERETT
HEREEEE (REMNERRE)
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. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—TF+_A=+—HIFE

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Consideration of HK$180,000,000 in connection with
the acquisition of entire equity interest of Vigour Well
Limited has to be paid upon the completion of this
acquisition on 18 January 2011, further details of which
are set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements; and

July 2011 Convertible Notes (as defined in note 25)
payable with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately HK$68,411,000 as at 31 December 2010
will mature on 23 July 2011. The Group is required to
redeem the July 2011 Convertible Notes at their principal
amount of approximately HK$70,000,000 upon maturity.
The July 2011 Convertible Notes have been early
redeemed in January 2011, further details of which are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements;

In order to improve the Group's operating and financial

position, the directors have been implementing various

measures as follows:

(a)

As described in note 35 to the consolidated financial
statements, on 13 January 2011, a rights issue on the
basis of ten rights share for every one share held on
the record date was effected at a subscription price of
HK$0.19 per rights share. A total of 1,126,955,740 rights
shares were issued resulting in gross proceeds of
approximately HK$214,000,000. The net proceeds
amounted to HK$208,600,000, of which
HK$170,000,000 has been used for the payment of the
consideration for acquisition of the entire equity interest
of Vigour Well Limited and approximately
HK$10,000,000 has been set aside for final payment of
consideration, and the remaining balance of
approximately HK$28,600,000 for the partial payment
of early redemption of July 2011 Convertible Notes;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements .

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

2. REEE »

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

On 25 March 2011, the Company entered into a placing
agreement with a placing agent whereby the placing
agent agreed to procure on a best effort basis
subscription for maximum of 247,900,000 shares at the
price of HK$0.11 per placing share with estimated gross
proceeds of HK$27,270,000.

The proceeds are expected to be received after the date
of the consolidated financial statements after approval
from the Stock Exchange is granted. The net proceeds
of HK$26,700,000 will be used to finance the payment
of the Debt and the accrued interest thereof;

The Group negotiated and obtained an offer letter for
facility line of HK$40,000,000 from a financier to finance
the settlement of the Debt and the accrued interest
thereof as well as operation of the Group. As at the
date of approval for issuance of the consolidated
financial statements, the Group is still considering
options including accepting the offer from the financier
or to explore other financing options; and

The Group launched an appeal against the Judgment,
details of which are set out in note 33, and decided to
apply for stay of execution of the Judgment pending
appeal. As at the date of approval for issuance of the
consolidated financial statements, such application has
not yet been dealt with by the trial judge.

The directors are of the opinion that, taking into account the

measures as above, the Group will have sufficient working

capital to meet its financial obligations as they fall due in the

next twelve months from the date of the consolidated financial

statements. Accordingly, the consolidated financial

statements have been prepared on a going concern basis.

(b)

(c)

(d)
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. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—_T—ZTF+_A=1+—HIEFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG £
FINANCIAL REPORTING A

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs"”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA").

AEE  AEERATIHBLEMAE
(BB G AE]) R Z AT RGBT

R R R

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)  Group Cash-settled Share-based BT RS LR SENRESLEERD A
Payment Transactions F2% (BRI A) - AN S
HKFRS 3 Business Combinations BAETBRELER EBEH
(as revised in 2008) BIR(ZZENGE
HAEHD)
HKAS 27 Consolidated and Separate BEEGHERNE2R SARBUIBRER
(as revised in 2008) Financial Statements (Z2ENE
HAEHD)
HKAS 39 (Amendments)  Eligible Hedged ltems BEGENER  AERYEMIER
(CCHEN)
HKFRSs (Amendments) Improvements to HKFRSs BB RS LA ZEENEMBRGEE
issued in 2009 (CHE) B S $ 5 AR Bl 2
HKFRSs (Amendments) Amendments to HKFRS 5 as BETBRELED HEBIBRELED
part of Improvements to (CHEY) E A N
HKFRSs issued in 2008 ER-ZTNEF
FBEmEARBERE
ERBtE 2 — M
HK(IFRIC) — Int 17 Distributions of Non-cash BE (BEHBERE RMEBEADRFRCEE
Assets to Owners REZE®)
— REE1THR
HK — Int 5 Presentation of Financial B — REER HBHmER 2N
Statements — Classification by — ERAHBET
the Borrower of a Term Loan RERKERIET
that Contains a Repayment on JEBERZAE

Demand Clause

The application of the new and revised Standards and

Interpretations in the current year has had no material effect

on the amounts reported in these consolidated financial

statements and/or disclosures set out in these consolidated

financial statements.

| ANNUAL REPORT 2010

AN 8 RFTAT RS AT R e e S
ZEGAVBBRRMERESERLLEHFE
MBRRABRBEREATE




STANDARDS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING

("HKFRSS") (Continued)

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised
Standards and Interpretations that have been issued but are

not yet effective:

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)
HKFRS 9
HKAS 12 (Amendments)

HKAS 24
(as revised in 2009)

HKAS 32 (Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 14
(Amendments)

HK(IFRIC) — Int 19

U Effective for annual p
or 1 January 2011, as

Improvements to HKFRSs
issued in 2010, except for the
amendments to HKFRS 3 (as
revised in 2008), HKAS 1 and
HKAS28!

Disclosures — Transfers of
Financial Assets®
Financial Instruments*

Deferred Tax: Recovery of
Underlying Assets®
Related Party Disclosures®

Classification of Rights Issues’

Prepayments of a Minimum
Funding Requirement®

Extinguishing Financial Liabilities
with Equity Instruments?

eriods beginning on or after 1 July 2010
appropriate.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2010.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011.

= Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2013.

9 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2012.

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2011.

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February
2010.

JE P 3R] B A&
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A1) «
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BEMBREEA RE —ERVMBEE
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FIERK »

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (as issued in November 2009)
introduces new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments (as revised in November 2010) adds requirements
for financial liabilities and for derecognition.
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. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE—_Z—ZF+_A=+—HIFE

3. APPLICATION OF NEW AND 3. BRI REEITEENE
REVISED HONG KONG HERR ([BEABRER
FINANCIAL REPORTING A1) @

STANDARDS ("HKFRSS") (Continued)

e Under HKFRS 9, all recognised financial assets that are e WBEABMBEHREENESRE  FIERE
within the scope of HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: BRI ELNEIGRESRMTE  BRAK
Recognition and Measurement are subsequently FrEHEANCERRMBEE - HigH

measured at either amortised cost or fair value.
Specifically, debt investments that are held within a
business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal outstanding are generally measured at

B AR A TERE - LEE &
BEREAFAME Z REME RSN
BZEBRE  ARE/XNAE AR
BEASNEZANREREZEBIKR
B —RERNERSPRE R RE
HHEXAGTE © PTA R EBIRE R

amortised cost at the end of subsequent accounting BEHRHEE ST PEERKZATE
periods. All other debt investments and equity P2 o
investments are measured at their fair values at the end
of subsequent accounting periods.
e In relation to financial liabilities, the significant change e DHMBBEMES  TEEHNHEIETEA

relates to financial liabilities that are designated as at
fair value through profit or loss. Specifically, under
HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities that are designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, the amount of change
in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable

BAFEFABREZVBABERR - L
HE  REFEMBREEIFER -
Fdﬁ% ERBEAFEFARSZMHAE
AR BEEERERRERMEH
ﬁ@?ﬁ ) 2 BTN B 2 R

to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented 2% BRIEREMEABEEHRZAE
in other comprehensive income, unless the presentation FEERREFH R ELNILMER
of the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in Z 2EHERE - AI{ERIGR - BB A EE

other comprehensive income would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk
are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Previously, under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as at fair value through profit or loss was
presented in profit or loss.

HKFRS 9 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2013, with earlier application permitted.

The directors anticipate that HKFRS 9 will be adopted in the
Group’s consolidated financial statements for financial year

ending 31 December 2013. The directors do not anticipate

that these amendments to HKFRS 9 will have a significant

effect on the classification and measurement of the Group's

financial assets and financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements .
ARE R R MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE—_ZT—ZF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESFHEX

POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for financial instruments
that are measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting
policies set out below. Historical cost is generally based on
the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company (its subsidiaries). Control is achieved where
the Company has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from
its activities.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition
or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with those used by other members of the Group.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses
are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—TF+_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTTBXR @)

POLICIES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Business combinations that took place on or
after 1 January 2010

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value at
the acquisition date, except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets
related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee Benefits
respectively;

o liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment transactions of the acquiree or the replacement
of an acquiree’s share-based payment transactions with
share-based payment transactions of the Group are
measured in accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment at the acquisition date; and

o assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured
in accordance with that Standard.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE—ZFT—ZTF+_A=1+—HIEFE

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Business combinations that took place on or
after 1 January 2010 (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If, after re-
assessment, the net of the acquisition-date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds
the sum of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree and the fair value of
the acquirer’s previously held interest in the acquire (if any),
the excess is recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s
net assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement
basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction basis. Other
types of non-controlling interests are measured at their fair
value or another measurement basis required by another
Standard.

Where the consideration the Group transfers in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and considered as part of the consideration transferred in a
business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with the
corresponding adjustments being made against goodwill or
gain on bargain purchase. Measurement period adjustments
are adjustments that arise from additional information
obtained during the measurement period about facts and
circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—TF+_A=+—HIFE

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (continued)

Business combinations that took place on or
after 1 January 2010 (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of
the contingent consideration that do not qualify as
measurement period adjustments depends on how the
contingent consideration is classified. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured
at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration that
is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at
subsequent reporting dates in accordance with HKAS 39, or
HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets, as appropriate, with the corresponding gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group's previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss where such treatment
would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

Changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity before the acquisition date are reclassified to profit
or loss when the Group obtains control over the acquiree.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted during the measurement
period (see above), or additional assets or liabilities are
recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date that,
if known, would have affected the amounts recognised as of
that date.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE—_ZT—ZF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICI ES (Continued)

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

Business combinations that took place prior
to 1 January 2010

Acquisition of businesses was accounted for using the
purchase method. The cost of the acquisition was measured
at the aggregate of the fair values, at the date of exchange,
of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed, and equity
instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree, plus any costs directly attributable to the
business combination. The acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities that met the relevant
conditions for recognition were generally recognised at their
fair value at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising on acquisition was recognised as an asset
and initially measured at cost, being the excess of the cost
of the acquisition over the Group’s interest in the recognised
amounts of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent
liabilities recognised. If, after assessment, the Group's interest
in the recognized amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable
assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities exceeded the cost
of the acquisition, the excess was recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The non-controlling interest in the acquiree was initially
measured at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share
of the recognised amounts of the assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities of the acquiree.

Contingent consideration was recognised, if and only if, the
contingent consideration was probable and could be
measured reliably. Subsequent adjustments to contingent
consideration were recognised against the cost of the
acquisition.

Business combinations achieved in stages were accounted
for as separate steps. Goodwill was determined at each step.
Any additional acquisition did not affect the previously
recognised goodwill.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—

GOODWILL

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at
cost less any accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is
presented separately in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units, (or groups of cash-
generating units) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination.

A cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
whenever there is indication that the unit may be impaired.
For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a reporting period,
the cash-generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
is tested for impairment before the end of that reporting
period. If the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
is less than the carrying amount of the unit, the impairment
loss is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwvill
allocated to the unit, and then to the other assets of the unit
pro rata on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in
the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwill is recognised
directly in profit or loss in consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, the
attributable amount of goodwill capitalised is included in the
determination of the amount of profit or loss on disposal.

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held
for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use.
This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the non-current asset (or disposal group) is
available for immediate sale in its present condition.
Management must be committed to the sale, which should
be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale
within one year from the date of classification.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE—_ZT—ZF+_-_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICI ES (Continued)

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE
(Continued)

When the Group is committed to a sale plan involving loss of
control of a subsidiary, all of the assets and liabilities of that
subsidiary are classified as held for sale when the criteria
described above are met, regardless of whether the Group
will retain a non-controlling interest in its former subsidiary
after the sale.

Non-current assets (and disposal groups) classified as held
for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying
amount and fair value less costs to sell.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for
goods sold and services provided in the normal course of
business, net of business tax and other taxes.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the goods
are delivered and title has passed, at which time all the
following conditions are satisfied:

o the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods;

o the Group retains neither continuing managerial
involvement to the degree usually associated with
ownership nor effective control over the goods sold;

° the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

o it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group; and

o the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the
transaction can be measured reliably.

Agency commission and service income from property agency
is recognised in the accounting period in which the services
are rendered. This is usually taken as the time when the
relevant agreement becomes unconditional or irrevocable.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—TF+_A=+—HIFE

REVENUE RECOGNITION (continued)

Franchise income is recognised in accordance with the terms
of the relevant franchise agreement and when the Group's
entitlement to payment has been established.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Interest
income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective
interest rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items
of property, plant and equipment less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted
for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets or,
where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICI ES (Continued)

LEASING

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets
of the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease
or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease
payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the consolidated statement of financial position as
obligations under a finance lease.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying
assets, in which case they are capitalised in accordance with
the Group's policy on borrowing costs (see the accounting
policy below). Contingent rentals are recognised as expenses
in the periods in which they are incurred.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term, except where another
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern
in which economic benefits from the leased asset are
consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases
are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are
incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.

4. TESTEE ®

HE

i T EARFRE PR B R 2 AR A B 2D e A 0 ¥R 88
BEAEA  AEHENOBERRENESE - 7
EREMBHEEN P EREERE -

AEEERABA

FIEREHEEENHERRRRE A FER
NEEMERR 2B ABE UABRIEERE) i
RREE - BWHEAZHERETFAKRETH
RRKRATI BB EH L ALE -

HEFRTINEE 5 < B0 & & (R < R 1E
HNEE  BRERBZHFEERBEEZFE - F
BRI AN ERER - AR ES B
BEEZMEBAIRSIN  RUBERT - BEMX
BRRAEE EERARK (R TX 285K
R)ERE ZAREERNELHHERLR
& o

REMERBER MR EREER RS - H
SERGEERRRREAEEEEZLKE
Man 2 B RAEARIRID - REHEPTEE 2K
REERELHRER R -

WK LHER NESHERS  ZFES
ERAGERER - BB ZRFHRTIARRET
A& B STHER » AN S H RS EERR
BHERAEARKRE  HEEEZKERRE
BEHE RERR S ©

| —z—z=25 OS1




For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group
entity, transactions in currencies other than the functional
currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded in
the respective functional currency (i.e. the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates)
at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the
transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried
at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair
value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value, are included in profit or
loss for the period.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment
income earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit schemes and
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are charged as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE—ZFT—ZTF+_A=1+—HIEFE

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on the taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and it further excludes items that
are never taxable or deductible. The Group'’s liability for current
tax is calculated using the tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments and interests are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse
in the foreseeable future.

BiIH
F 1598 32 HH $E R B AR A BUIB SR AEBLIE -

REENBRIRT IR F R ERBOGNETE - BRR
Bom N EAR S KSR TR - 1T
PR BB FE 1 HL {th 4F [ B RRAR 3 T 02 U
ARSHIRR I ERE KT RT S IRZI]
B - AEBZAHMHEREERREHAR
EHETHEE LEHFT2HERFE -

EEBBTER RV BRERANEERAER
E{EEAR EERTUEN 2 BEHEME 2
EREEREMER - EXNARBEBTENMERE
AR TR E R ER o BERAEEENBRERR
B 18 Z FE SR B0 FFR B AT BE 2 LA 35 AT 1Rl
ERZENER  AEREZEABEXIRAN—
A EEABURN M TEE TR 2R
5 (TEREHAH) PHRERRELEENA
BmaIE - AT EmAREEERAE -

BRERAERERENBRARBRIREEL 2R
AR ERES R BRAERD. - ME R SR [ RE 1 I R A =B
B[O B FRE Z RN A R R & B 2l R 5
i o R EFRE MEDRAEZ AT R E8
FREE 2 BEREHIREEEESAERERNE
B8 R4 2 FERR T A B T RA7E ] R AS SR EL
R OB - 7 A RER

21 AR B R A A



. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R M

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—TF+_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTTBXR @)

POLICIES (Continued)

TAXATION (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rate
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period,
to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and
liabilities. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case
the deferred tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity respectively.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICI ES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are comprising of loans and
receivables and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL'). All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis.
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset and of allocating interest
income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
(including all fees paid or received that form an integral part
of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period to the
net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis
for debt instruments.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including trade and other receivables and bank
balances and cash) are carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less any identified impairment
losses (see accounting policy on impairment loss on loans
and receivables below).
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—TF+_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Effective interest method (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at FVTPL has two subcategories, including

financial assets held for trading and those designated as at

FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling
in the near future; or

it is a part of an identified portfolio of financial
instruments that the Group manages together and has
a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading

may be designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with

changes in fair value arising from remeasurement recognised

directly in profit or loss in the period in which they arise. The

net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any

dividend or interest earned on the financial assets.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICI ES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (cContinued)
Impairment of loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of the reporting period. Loans and
receivables are impaired where there is objective evidence
that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition the estimated future cash flows of the loans
and receivables have been affected.

Objective evidence of impairment could include:

o significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

o breach of contract, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; or

o it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of loans and receivables, such as trade
receivables, assets that are assessed not to be impaired
individually are subsequently assessed for impairment on a
collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’'s past
experience of collecting payments, an increase in the number
of delayed payments in the portfolio past the average credit
period of 90 days, observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on
receivables.

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there
is objective evidence that the asset is impaired, and is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTTBXR @)

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Impairment of loans and receivables (Continued)

The carrying amount of all loans and receivables is reduced
by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with
the exception of accounts and other receivables, where the
carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance
account are recognised in profit or loss. When an account or
other receivable is considered uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised,
the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
asset at the date the impairment is reversed does not exceed
what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group
entity are classified according to the substance of the
contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of
a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its
liabilities.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments through the expected life of the financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables, and
obligations under a finance lease) are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Convertible notes issued by the Group

Convertible loan notes containing liability and equity
components

Convertible notes issued by the Group that contain both the
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled by the exchange of a
fixed amount of cash or another financial asset for a fixed
number of the Company’s own equity instruments is classified
as an equity instrument.

On initial recognition, the fair value of the liability component
is determined using the prevailing market interest of similar
non-convertible debts. The difference between the gross
proceeds of the issue of the convertible notes and the fair
value assigned to the liability component, representing the
conversion option for the holder to convert the notes into
equity, is included in equity (convertible notes equity reserve).

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible notes is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The equity component,
representing the option to convert the liability component into
ordinary shares of the Company, will remain in convertible
notes equity reserve until the embedded option is exercised
(in which case the balance stated in convertible notes equity
reserve will be transferred to share premium). Where the
option remains unexercised at the expiry date, the balance
stated in convertible notes equity reserve will be released to
the accumulated losses. No gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss upon conversion or expiration of the option.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
notes are allocated to the liability and equity components in
proportion to the allocation of the gross proceeds. Transaction
costs relating to the equity component are charged directly
to equity. Transaction costs relating to the liability component
are included in the carrying amount of the liability portion
and amortised over the period of the convertible notes using
the effective interest method.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—TF+_A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4. TESTTBXR @)

POLICIES (Continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Convertible notes issued by the Group
(Continued)

Convertible loan notes containing liability component and
conversion option derivative

Convertible loan notes issued by the Group that contain both
liability and conversion option components are classified
separately into respective items on initial recognition.
Conversion option that will be settled other than by the
exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial asset
for a fixed number of the Company’s own equity instruments
is a conversion option derivative. At the date of issue, both
the liability and conversion option components are recognised
at fair value.

In subsequent periods, the liability component of the
convertible loan notes is carried at amortised cost using the
effective interest method. The conversion option derivative
is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss.

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
loan notes are allocated to the liability and conversion option
components in proportion to their relative fair values.
Transaction costs relating to the conversion option derivative
is charged to profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs
relating to the liability component are included in the carrying
amount of the liability portion and amortised over the period
of the convertible loan notes using the effective interest
method.

Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at

the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

No gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase,
sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity
instruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE—ZFT—ZTF+_A=1+—HIEFE

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the assets expire or, the financial assets are
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum
of the consideration received and receivable is recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation
specified in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or
expires. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and
payable is recognised in profit or loss.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Equity-settled share-based payment
transactions

Share options granted to employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference
to the fair value of share options granted at the grant date is
expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period/
recognised as an expense in full at the grant date when the
share options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
ultimately vest. The impact of the revision of the estimates
during the vesting period, if any, is recognised in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to share options
reserve.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
options reserve will be transferred to accumulated losses.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—TF+_A=+—HIFE

IMPAIRMENT LOSSES ON ASSETS OTHER
THAN GOODWILL (SEETHE ACCOUNTING
POLICY IN RESPECT OF GOODWILL
ABOVE)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of
the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. In addition, intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet available
for use are tested for impairment annually, and whenever
there is an indication that they may be impaired. If the
recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is
reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HZE—ZFT—ZTF+_A=1+—HIEFE

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end
of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF GOODWILL

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected
to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. Where the actual
future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2010, the
carrying amount of goodwill is HK$92,000,000 (2009:
HK$256,000,000).

ESTIMATED IMPAIRMENT OF TRADE
RECEIVABLE

When there is objective evidence of impairment loss, the
Group takes into consideration the estimation of future cash
flows. The amount of the impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future
credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the
effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where
the actual future cash flows are less than expected, a material
impairment loss may arise. As at 31 December 2010, the
carrying amount of trade receivable is HK$36,083,000 (net
of allowance for doubtful debts of HK$1,073,000) (2009:
carrying amount of HK$35,004,000, net of allowance for
doubtful debts of HK$1,816,000).
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5.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

VALUATION OF CONVERTIBLE NOTES

The directors use their judgment in selecting an appropriate
valuation technique for the Group's convertible notes
designated as at fair value through profit or loss which are
not quoted in the active market. The fair value of convertible
notes designated as at fair value through profit or loss is
estimated by independent professional valuer based on
Binomial Tree Model and details of the key inputs into the
model are disclosed in note 21. The fair value of convertible
notes designated at fair value through profit or loss varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any
change in these variables so adopted may materially affect
the estimation of the fair value of convertible notes designated
as at fair value through profit or loss.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group's
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the convertible notes disclosed in note 25 net of
cash and cash equivalents and equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, and various
reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
periodically. As part of this review, the directors consider the
cost of capital and the risks associates with each class of
capital. Based on recommendations of the directors, the
Group will balance its overall capital structure through the
payment of dividends, and the issue of additional share capital
or new debt or the redemption of existing debt.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

7A. CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL

7B.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

7. S@TH

7A. £ R T EE R

INSTRUMENTS
2010 2009
—E-EF —TETAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Financial assets MEEE
Loans and receivables B R EWFRIE
(including cash and (BREEskREEEER)
cash equivalents) 79,551 132,364
Financial assets at fair value BATFEFABEZHBEE
through profit or loss
— Held for trading — BEEE 56,009 —
— Designated as at fair value — BERAFE AERE
through profit or loss 16,153 —
151,713 132,364
Financial liabilities HKEaE
Amortised cost B SE AR 115,397 169,523

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, investments held for trading,
convertible notes designated as at fair value through
profit or loss, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables, convertible notes, and obligations under a
finance lease. Details of the financial instruments are
disclosed in the respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments include market risk
(currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk)
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to
mitigate these risks are set out below. The management
manages and monitors these exposures to ensure
appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. I H®w

(Continued)

7B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7B. B EREEEEREBEK #®)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Currency risk INE 7 B
The Group operates in Hong Kong with most of the AEEBEEFELEEL  ERBOHRS
transactions denominated and settled in Hong Kong HURBEBER e EKE
dollars, the functional currency of relevant group entities. MEHE -
The Group is mainly exposed to the RMB and USD, RNEE X EFAT B INE FEIUER R R H AL
arising from foreign currency trade and other FEWGRIE « RITHEBRRIRE « RERMER
receivables, bank balances and cash, and trade and other AREMENRIBRAEE 2 ARE RZE
payables. TCZ BB °
The carrying amounts of the Group'’s foreign currency AEEREHRBBAINETIE 2 BER
denominated assets and liabilities at the end of reporting BEZERENT :

period are as follows:

Liabilities Assets
BE =N
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-EF —ZETNF —E-EF —ETNEF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

BT BETT BT BETT

RMB AR (117) — 2,379 1,411
usb ETT (4,121) (591) 6,568 431
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7B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analyses for currency risk

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a
5% (2009: 10%) increase and decrease in the functional
currency of each group entity against the above foreign
currencies. 5% (2009: 10%) is the sensitivity rate used
when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key
management personnel and represents management's
assessment of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. In view of the less volatile current
market condition, the management decreased the
percentage of 5% in preparing the sensitivity analysis
in the current year. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items other than the items denominated in USD as the
directors consider that the Group’s exposure to USD is
insignificant on the ground that HKD is pegged to USD,
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
(2009: 10%) change in foreign currency rate. A positive
number below indicates a decrease in losses where the
above foreign currencies strengthen 5% (2009: 10%)
against the functional currency of each group entity. For
a 5% (2009: 10%) weakening of the above foreign
currencies against the functional currency of each group
entity, there would be an equal and opposite impact on
the losses and the balance below would be opposite.
In the view of the less volatile current market condition,
the management decreased the percentage 5% in
preparing the sensitivity analysis in the current year.

Loss for the year NEFEEE

7B. B EREEEEREE &)

ShE m B ()

HEE T

HNE B\ B& 2 SRR E AT
TRFINAEBRSEEER 2K E
B FONESTER FH R TBEE% (ZF
ZNF 10%) ZHEB 5% (ZFT N,
F:10%) HMEBERABRINER
BERNBRERRAZHBRE  RERE
BEMIINERXRAEEEZCEEEMm
1B 2 51 o SR IR 2 TS AR S B)
BN BEEERREGRE DR
FEZHBERIES% - AR BB ESE
TE  MEERAEASEEBETZ
BRTA - AtBEESTERIEAE
TLAINE S E 2 REEIINE KR
B @ WRFRAINEERE% (ZTZN
F:10%) 2EBETRERAE - TFK
PEEERE LINEH S EEERY
e EH-ETEE% (ZEZNE - 10%)
BEBEZRD o W ElINERSEEE
BN EEREFD (ZTETNEF ¢
10%) @ AleHEBEEKRSREE 2H
RABE - ¥ T X2 &ESH B HER
R ERBARZMSRLRBER) - &
BERARESRE D TRERNFEE 2
RRE R IEKS5% °

HK$ Impact
Bl E
2010 2009
—E-Z2F —ETNF
HK$°'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
94 118
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. €T A ®»)

(Continued)

7B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7B. IR REEEERBE ©@

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Interest rate risk

The Group's fair value interest rate risk primarily relate
to convertible notes designated at fair value through
profit or loss, convertible notes, and obligations under
a finance lease, as set out in notes 21, 25 and 26
respectively.

The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to variable-rate bank deposits because
these balances carry interest at prevailing rates and they
are of short maturity.

The Group's exposures to interest rates on financial
liabilities are detailed in the liquidity risk management
section of this note.

Sensitivity analysis

Regarding the cash flow interest rate risk, the sensitivity
analysis below have been determined based on the
exposure to interest rates for non-derivative instruments
at the end of the reporting period. For variable-rate bank
deposits, the analysis is prepared assuming the amount
of the relevant asset outstanding at the end of the
reporting period was outstanding for the whole year. A
50 basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax loss for the year ended 31 December 2010
would decrease/increase by HK$149,000 (2009:
HK$398,000).
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SFRERENERBME @ TXEKE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—_Z—ZF+_-_A=+—HIFE

7B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (Continued)

Price risk on listed securities under
investments held for trading

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed equity securities included in
investments held for trading. The management manages
this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments
with different risks. The Group’s equity price risk is
mainly concentrated on equity instruments quoted in
the Stock Exchange.

Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risks of listed
securities included in investments held for trading at
the reporting date.

If the share prices of the respective equity investments
had been 5% higher/lower and all other variables were
held constant, the Group's post-tax loss for the year
would decrease/increase by HK$1,987000 (2009: nil)
as a result of the changes in fair value of investments
held for trading.

Price risk on convertible notes designated
as at fair value through profit or loss

Regarding the price risk in relation to convertible notes
designated as at fair value through profit or loss, the
fair value of the notes at the end of reporting period
represents mainly the fair value of the debt component
as the exercise price of the conversion option was much
higher than the share price of the convertible notes.
The fair value of the conversion option component was
insignificant and will not be subject to change unless
there is significant increment in the share price.
Accordingly, no sensitivity analysis is provided.

Credit risk

As at 31 December 2010, the Group’'s maximum
exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial loss
to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount
of the respective recognised financial assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position.

7B. B EREEEEREE &)

BHEEEZ FhEFEKER

REBREBIEEERE 2 FRAFE
FHERERR - EEREBEBERES
TRRBIEE 2 EAEEHRR - K
EECRERBREZEPRBFRE
ZHEmTAR o

TXEURE DT TIIRBR 2 B HETA
FIEEBEREZ EMRFEY ZRAE
R MmEE °

WMEBRAKREZEBR EHA TK
5% METAEEME S s TE K&
B2 ANFERBEBEBIEMN RS
#1,987,0007C (ZZ2ZTNEF : &) * AR
HIEEERE AT EZ IR -

1EERZ N FESRIET A B
Z AR E 1R 2 B B

BRRAFESIRL AR 2 AR
REZERER  ARLBREZITEE
BESNABMEREZRMOERS - BAit
SENERBRZ A FEEBEEHE
"Z’&?Tﬁ o BIHEE D 2 N FERR/

" REE  BRIEREARNEL - A
lit  WERHGURE DT -

=EE R

A RS
Ef 2 BEESAR (@258 FERE
T - KRS BB %
BATBRRRA 2 % QMBI
A2 R -
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. €T A ®»)

(Continued)

7B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7B. IR REEEERBE ©@

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (Continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of
the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt
at the end of the reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company
consider that the Group's credit risk is significantly
reduced.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to
finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows.

The following table details the Group's remaining
contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on
the agreed repayment terms. For non-derivative financial
liabilities, the table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The table includes both interest and principal cash
flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate,
the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate
at the end of reporting period.

| ANNUAL REPORT 2010

EE =B (%)

REREERRERERE  AEEER
EEZk—EBFAEEEEERE &
EHEREMEREF - ARARRKRR
FEITB AR B B EIER o pLHh - AKE
R 2 RHIR R B 5 AR K 2 AT IR
BI5REE - PARERAEE W@ 2 S
EERERBERRE - 3Lt - ARREF
RARAEEZEERRERSHIR

HBEZEE

REERBESCARIE  AEEER
RERBREMREEFEREREERRE
B2KE NERAKEZ EERHE
ERBEREREFTHITE -

TR AEE R E EEGRR 2
BREZHRTENIHA - RIEOTEM
BREMS @ TRIOERAREREE
BEYBRARZEFAHZARMBARER
EmREMK - TRERENERAE 2R
ERE ° WARZFEHE - RIRRER
ERENRE2BYR M EFHE -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. €@ T A @®
(Continued)
7B. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 7B. B EKREERERBE @
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (Continued) T E %R (E)
Liquidity risk tables B E 2 Efg K
On demand Total Carrying
Weighted or undiscounted amount
average less than 13 3 months 15 cash at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years flows  31/12/2010
R-2-%F
ARER tZ8
mE e FERRE =t-8

FURE  HR-ER -E=fA Z@AE-§ -EEIf REAR ZEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% EETR EETR BRI EUTR BRI BRI

2010 —2-%%
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTENKAE
Trade and other payables RS RE M RFE - 46,506 - - - 46,506 46,506
Obligations under a finance lease BEMEER 18 16 33 148 k]| 508 480
Convertible notes ThREE 20 - - 71,400 - 71,400 68,411
46,522 33 71,548 3N 118,414 115,397
On demand Total Carrying
Weighted or undiscounted amount
average less than 1-3 3 months 1-5 cash at
interest rate 1 month months to 1 year years flows  31/12/2009
RIZENE
BEER t-4
g BES RERES =1+-A
THfx  SR-BR -2=@R =BRZ-§ —4Z1f HEEE ZEEE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% AETT AR Vot BB BB BB
2009 it 513
Non-derivative financial liabilities FTENKAE
Trade and other payables BT RE M RTFE - 46314 - - - 46,314 47469
Convertible notes THRRER 2.0 — — 2,600 132,600 135,200 122,054
46,314 — 2,600 132,600 181,514 169,523
The amount included above for variable interest rate ENOETEMBAEZFBFET A,
instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities is ©5  2REFRNEREKRAMETF
subject to change if changes in variable interest rates RAGET ZF B R F B A P # o

differ to those estimates of interest rates determined
at the end of the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2010 #HZE—

7C.

7D.

FAIR VALUE

The fair value of held for trading investments are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices.
Fair values of the Group's investments held for trading
are classified as level 1 measurements which all derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for
identical assets and liabilities.

The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities are determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices or rates from observable current
market transactions as input. For option based
derivative, the fair value is estimated using option pricing
model.

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at
amortised cost in the consolidated financial statements
approximate their fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
RECOGNIZED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments that are measured subsequent to initial
recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based
on the degree to which the fair value is observable.

° Level 1 fair value measurements are those derived
from quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market
for identical assets or liabilities.

° Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived
from inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices).

° Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived
from valuation techniques that include inputs for
the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

21 HOLDINGS LIMITED
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7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 7. R I AR ®»
(Continued)
7D. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7D. REZE B R R RERE 22
RECOGNIZED IN THE CONSOLIDATED FEFTE ©®)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)
As at 31 December 2010 R-ZB-ZTFE+=-A=+—H
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£—R B E=H &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ik BT T BT BT

Financial assets MBEEE
Fair value through FEiRBRE
profit or loss /NS =]
— Investments held for — ®FEEE
trading "E 47,595 8,414 — 56,009
— Convertible notes — EBEEATE
designated as at fair FFAB &=
value through
profit or loss — - 16,153 16,153
47,595 8,414 16,153 72,162
As at 31 December 2009 RZBEZNF+_A=+—~1
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE— & E=/ &&t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB T BT BT BB T
Financial liabilities BEaE
Financial derivative liabilites ~ BAI5{T4 B E
— Convertible notes — ARRER
— derivative —TETIA
component #Ho — — — —
There were no transfers between Level 1 measurements RAFE  F—REE_RAFEFZ
and Level 2 measurements in the current year. 2 I e o

|=2-z558 13
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—TF+_A=+—HIFE

7D. R E B MR R RER 2D
FEFE #®

7D. FAIRVALUE MEASUREMENTS
RECOGNIZED IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

FZRNTEFEMBEERVBAE

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements of

financial assets and financial liabilities 2 H AR
Convertible
notes designated Convertible
as at fair value notes —
through derivative
profit or loss component
EERATE
FIBRI St ABE AIBREE —
ZHBRBREE TEIAESS
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
At 1 January 2009 R-ZZEZNF—HA—H — —
Issues B1T — 53,936
Change in fair value in profit or loss R 1B 2 A F(EE — 77,801
Settlements wH — (131,737)
At 31 December 2009 RZEBEZENF+ZA=1T—8 — —
Purchases BE 24,214 =
Change in fair value RiBm 2 A FEEE
in profit or loss 8,619 -
Settlements wH (16,680) =
At 31 December 2010 R-ZB-ZF+=-A=+—-8 16,153 -

There is no transfer into/out of Level 3 in the current
year.

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the fair value
gains of convertible notes designated as at profit or loss
of HK$8,619,000 (2009: Nil) were related to the Level 3
unlisted convertible notes held at the end of the
reporting period.

For the year ended 31 December 2009, the total fair
value loss of derivative component of convertible notes
recognised in profit or loss of HK$127,262,000 (of which
HK$49,461,000 was related to loss on initial recognition)
was related to the Level 3 unlisted convertible loan notes
issued during the last reporting period.

21 HOLDINGS LIMITED
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A=+—HIEFE

REVENUE 8. W&
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: REBZAFEREDTAT -
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ke v
Franchise income LS A PN 5,317 4,533
Property agency commission WERERE KRB KA
and service income 88,078 87,099
Sales of goods HEEm 126,565 87918
219,960 179,550
SEGMENT INFORMATION 9. ZHEHR
Information reported to the Board of Directors of the NERDIK R EDERBRENMAESS
Company, being the chief operating decision maker, for the EWMIERAMBERBELRIEECEYM A
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment I o
performance focuses on types of services provided and goods
sold.
The Group is organised into three business divisions including REEHER= 1I¥i"%’\*|3@%%¥ﬁf¥ I
property agency, toy products trading and securities trading BEREE  URBHFEBENMREHEKASE
and investments which form the Group's three operating 2 = fEsg =D E0 o
segments.
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results by operating BIEE D BEI D 2 NE B R FEE DT
segment is as follows: TS :
Securities
trading and
Property agency Toy products trading investments Consolidated
NERE GEAERER REEERRE &RE
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
“E2-%F “TTNF -B-BF “TTNF -B-BF “TTNF “E-BF —TTNG
HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BETR BETr BETr BETr BETr BETr BETn BT
Segment revenue 2 EE
— External sales —HBEE 93,395 91,632 126,565 87918 - — 219,960 179,550
Segment profit/(loss) AEEF/ (E) (158,200) 6,792  (1,888) (5,131) 13,163 —  (156,925) 1,661
Other information (included in Hp &R (BEFA
measure of segment profit/(loss)) AEETF/ (BHE))
Other income EffA 699 1,071 10 31 1,695 — 2,404 1,102
Depreciation of property, nE% - BERE
plant and equipment e 116 75 5 16 - = 121 91
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property,  HEWE  BER
plant and equipment il (as) /B (23) 294 - — - — (23) 294
Impairment loss on trade receivables MR 2 BEEE 77 399 - — - — 77 399
Reversal of impairment loss on MR 2 BEEE
trade receivables BcEm - (12) (820) (664) - — (820) (676)
Additions to non-current segment ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬁ?h@]u #
assets during the year E 1,137 74 4 8 - — 1,141 82
Impairment loss on goodwill HERESR 164,000 — - — - — 164,000 —

| —E-2FEH
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The totals presented for the Group’s operating segments

reconcile to the loss before tax as presented in the financial

statements as follows:

9. 7EER @

AEBREDHE 27 2 BT EARER AR
BRERGHABERZEEAT

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ZTENEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT I

Aggregate of segments’ (loss) profit 7S EB (B518) = 7 4258 (156,925) 1,661

Unallocated corporate income ROz EERA 12,169 121

Unallocated corporate expenses ROz ERE (5,771) (8,210)

Provision for losses on litigation A B R B (83,500) —
Fair value loss on derivative AR ERITET BIH

component of convertible notes Z A EEE — (127,262)

Finance costs MBEA (5,854) (10,039)

Loss before tax BRELRTEE (239,881) (143,729)

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities

by operating segments:

THMEERKE

BREDWMEDZAKEEER BB

T~

Securities trading

Property agency Toy products trading and investments Unallocated Consolidated
NERE NAERER RSEERRE KAE )
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
ZE-2F "ZINF CZB-BF _ETNF ZB-BF _ZTNE ZE-2F _ZTNE CZB-BF _ET)E
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETr BETr BETr BETr B¥Tx A%t B¥Tn E¥Tn B%Tn  E%Tx
ASSETS BE
Segment assets PEHEE 125,965 293,699 16,202 14,212 72,470 — - — 214,637 30791
Unallocated RARGCEEE
corporate assets - — - — - — 36,631 101,792 36,631 101,792
Consolidated total assets 4 & EB% 251,268 409,703
LIABILITIES B
Segment liabiliies D HEE 25,499 27265 19,157 16,219 - — - = 44,656 42,484
Unallocated corporate  AAELEEE
liabilities - — - — - — 156,501 127570 156,501 127570
Consolidated total GRARER
liabilities 201,157 170,054
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9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9.

SEGMENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

(Continued)
For the purposes of monitoring segment performances and

allocating resources between segments:

— all assets are allocated to operating segments other than
certain property, plant and equipment, other receivables
and bank balances and cash; and

— all liabilities are allocated to operating segments other
than other payables, convertible notes, tax payable and
obligations under a finance lease

ENTITY-WIDE DISCLOSURES
Geographical information

The Group's revenues from external customers and its non-
current assets are divided into the following geographical

DEER @)
PTHMEEREE @

REENBRARDSEDBZEZER

— FBERIEZEENE BKETY

% BB RRE - HARERGOR RIRTT
BHREREI - R

— FARBESIERELENE  BREMEN

IR ARREER - BARELRER

I1E =

EE(E -

ERSEARE
i B E

AEEIBELZ BB REIFERBEES DB
AT

areas:
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets
INEREF Z W ERBEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E2-ZF —ZEThF —E—-ZF —ETNEF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
BT T BETT BT T BT
Hong Kong e 152,826 146,128 93,173 256,183
Japan SN 39,659 29,741 — —
The People’s Republic hEE AR AME
of China 5,444 2,431 - —
Others EAh 22,031 1,250 - —
219,960 179,550 93,173 256,183

The geographical location of customers is based on the
location of customers, irrespective of the origin of the goods
and services. The geographical location of the non-current
assets is based on the physical location of the assets.

BEFZHENERREBETFPMAAELE (TEE
B MRS 2 HRM) ME| 5D - FRBEELZ
W ERREEEERMELME D -

| =z—s558 (1
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. Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 9. ﬁﬁgﬁﬂ (#&)
INFORMATION ABOUT MAJOR FEEFEHR
CUSTOMER
For the year ended 31 December 2010, there was no customer HEZZ—ZEF+-_A=1T—"HILFE ' #E
accounted for over 10% of total revenue. BRI BREBR10% ©
For the year ended 31 December 2009, the Group's customer (EEENF+_A=+—HILFERN &
base is diversified but included two customers of the property SERPEBIZ Tt - BEPMBERMER
agency segment and one customer of the toy products trading BAaHk—E2RmAEREENDBZELER
segment, with each of whom transactions have exceeded EFHBEWZRBI0%  MEREBEHS I Z ML
10% of the Group's total revenue. Aggregate revenue from B ZHE W BT AE22,784,0007T &
sales to these customers amounted to approximately 7&5#20,013,000T * MITEEREED B2 —
HK$22,784,000, and HK$20,013,000 from each of the two FEPZHEWR RO RE22,112,000
customers in the property agency segment and JC °
HK$22,112,000 from the one customer in the toy products
trading segment.
a2z
10.0THER GAINS 10. H ft I #=
2010 2009
—g-8F -TTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Net profit on investments held for trading #F{EE = 1% & )i F /558 2,506 —
Gain on convertible notes designated as 15 E R A FEHNEIL & AIBZE
at fair value through profit or loss 2 AR E R e (MEE21)
(Note 21) 8,619 —
Gain on partial redemption of BEF o AR E B 2 W
convertible notes 8,059
19,184 —
11. FINANCE COSTS 1.0 B E A
2010 2009
—E-=EF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Interest charges on: FMEZTHR
Bank overdraft wholly repayable AFRNEBREEZRTES
within five years 2 7
Convertible notes I E 5 5,847 7810
Finance lease BEMEE 5 —
Promissory note & H R - 2,222
5,854 10,039
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements .
ARE R R MEE

For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE—_ZT—ZF+_-_A=+—HIFE

12.INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. 788X
2010 2009
—E-=fF —ZTThEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T ok b
The charge comprises: X EBE -
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEAEFEH 2,608 547
Underprovision in respect of prior years @7 FEREE T2 16 12
2,624 559
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated BN ESB BB TIRMEFE < T RS
assessable profit for both years. FIAFLE16.5%1 &
The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the RNEE 2 e i X BAr G e & 2 BRI RIS
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of BHEEREAT
comprehensive income as follows:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZEENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Loss before tax W Al 5 48 (239,881) (143,729)
Tax at the applicable rate of 16.5% HERZE16.5%
(2009: 16.5%) “ETNF  16.5%)TE A (39,580) (23,715)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible ~ AR X 2 TS &
for tax purpose 43,036 24,155
Tax effect of income not taxable BERBRER BB
for tax purpose (2,398) (110)
Tax effect of tax loss not recognised RERBEEBZHBETE 1,729 752
Utilisation of tax loss previously BRI AER BB E2RGTE
not recognised (179) (535)
Underprovision in respect of prior years @ FE#E T2 16 12
Income tax expense FriSfifx 2,624 559
Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 28. EFEFIE S AT 5E28 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—_ZT—ZTF+_A=1+—HILFE

13.LOSS AND TOTAL 13.AFEFERZERIERE
COMPREHENSIVE EXPENSE FOR
THEYEAR
2010 2009
—E-FF —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET T

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year has been
arrived at after charging (crediting):

Directors’ remuneration, including
retirement benefits scheme

AEEEBEEIEHRXAR
ek, GEA) THIEIA

EEP S (BIFERAREFF B0
(Mf7E14)

contributions (note 14) 2,275 3,224
Other staff costs H b B TRA 10,413 10,503
Other retirement benefits scheme E 3R AR A8 I ET B K

contributions 530 628
Total staff costs B IR AN4EFE 13,218 14,355
Auditor’s remuneration 1% BRI B & 708 760
Depreciation of property, M BERZBZITE

plant and equipment 127 97
Impairment loss on trade receivables FEU AR R 2 BB BT 77 399
Reversal of impairment loss on FEMER R 2 REBE 2 B E

trade receivables (820) (676)
(Gain) loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BEME&HE 2 (W) BB

plant and equipment (23) 294
Operating lease payments for premises ¥ E &L HE 8 4,237 3,921
Cost of inventories recognised BERRAEAY 2FEKA

as expense 122,804 83,290
Gain on disposal of non-current HEIARIELEZIERDEE 2 W

assets classified as held for sale (4,084) =
Dividend income from equity securities BB UL A (1,535) —
Interest income MEHKA (11) (1)
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE—_ZT—ZF+_-_A=+—HIFE

14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments paid or payable to the directors were as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2010

1.5 €
B REMAEITIS TIFIBRMT

BEE_F-ZTF+-A=1+-RHLEE

Mr.Ng  Mr. Ha Kee Ms. Ma Mr. Chui M. Lui Siu Mr. Lam
Kai Man Choy,  WaiMan,  Mr. Cheng Chi Yun, Tsuen, Kwok
(“Mr. Ng") Eugene  Catherine Yuk Wo Robert Richard Cheong Total
RERLE
(TR%%]) EHEAZE FESxt BHEA%E E&CEE BEREE  MESKE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI
(note a) (note b) (note c)
(i zta) (Fr D) GED)
Fees ik - - - 33 100 100 3 264
Salaries and other  F& R B/
benefits 600 360 655 360 - - - 1,975
Retirement benefits R k4 5t 2l 5
scheme
contributions 12 12 4 8 - - - 36
Total emoluments B 4858 612 372 659 401 100 100 3 2,275
For the year ended 31 December 2009 HE_ZEZThF+_A=+—HILFE
Mr Ha Kee Ms. Ma Mr. Chui M. Lui Siu Ms. Leung
Mr. Ng Choy, Wai Man, ~ Mr. Cheng Chi'Yun, Tsuen, Sau Fan,
Eugene Catherine Yuk Wo Robert Richard Sylvia Total
REE BEIRE FEFR: BENLE EFLEE  BERRE  MEERE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  BETn A%Tr  B%Tn  B%Trn  A%Tr B%Tn A%Tx
(note a) (note b) (note d) (note e}
(Hizta) (FfzEb) (it zEd) (Fizke)
Fees ik — 100 — 100 100 52 48 400
Salaries and other %4 R EHEA
benefits 300 180 2,320 — — — — 2,800
Retirement benefits R k4t 2l 5
scheme
contributions 6 6 12 — — — — 24
Total emoluments B 4858 306 286 2,332 100 100 52 48 3,224
note: B 5T
(a)  Resigned on 30 April 2010 @ RN-ZE-—ZTFNMA=+HEE
(b)  Re-designated as executive director on 1 May 2010 b) RZZE—Z=FRA—BATARTES
(c)  Appointed on 9 September 2010 () RZZE—Z=SFNLANAEZFE
(d)  Appointed on 23 June 2009 d RZZETAFANA-F+=REZF
(e)  Resigned on 23 June 2009 () RZZETAFANA-+=RHEE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—_T—ZTF+_A=1+—HIEFE

14.DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 14.EEME »
(Continued)
For both 2010 and 2009, no emoluments were paid by the REZZE—ZFR_TTNFREFEABESL
Group to any of the directors as an inducement to join or NEMME - tERIMAREBE S INALRSEEiR
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office. ZRESERBBEE R —ZTFR=-ZT
No directors waived any emoluments for both 2010 and 2009. TNEREFEAMEESHEETWHS -
15.EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 15.EEM <
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the RAFE  AEEREESME AL BIERS
Group, two (2009: one) were directors of the Company, whose (ZZTNF - —R)EZ - AlestBEEER
emoluments are included in note 14 above. The emoluments EXHEE1425 2 9 - FRERNE#SR=H4
of the remaining three individuals (2009: four) were as follows: (ZE2EZNEF : WB) AT ZHESIT
2010 2009
—E-=EF —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Salaries and other benefits FeREVMER 2,020 2,414
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K4 52|t 3 29 59
2,049 2,473
Their emoluments were within the following band: HEMSBR THEE :

Number of employees

EEAH
2010 2009
—E-=F —EENF
nil to HK$1,000,000 = FHE#1,000,0007C 3 4
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

16.LOSS PER SHARE 16.BRE#E
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable RAEIEEIFE AEL 2 BRER R EEE
to the equity holders of the Company is based on the following TR AN 8URET &
data:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —ZTENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Loss for the year attributable to owners FIAFTEREEFREREE
of the Company for the purposes of ZARRNBHEE AEGEE
basic and diluted loss per share (242,505) (144,288)

Number of ordinary share

LREREE
2010 2009
—E—-EF —ZEENF
‘000 ‘000
TR F A%
(As restated)
(E=E7)
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ BT E SR EA R EEEE
shares for the purposes of basic and ZEBARINEE TS E ()
diluted loss per share (note) 106,320 26,251
note: MisE
The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes AT E MBS E SRR EZ R #5518 < i F15
of calculating basic and diluted loss per share for both years have TRRBRBEHXBRNDEHRZZEZNF_AR=Z
been retrospectively adjusted for the effects of the share —EF+Z AAERME AR (HF27) -
consolidation in February 2009 and December 2010 (note 27).
The computation of diluted loss per share for both years does HEWEEE Y SREBEEEE  REWEN
not assume the conversion of the Company’s outstanding AN T WARITE Y AR EE - B AETE
convertible notes since their exercise would result in a eEREREERD

decrease in loss per share.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HE—_T—ZTF+_A=1+—HIEFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND

17.9% - BRERKE

EQUIPMENT
Furniture
Leasehold fixtures and Motor
improvements equipments vehicles Total
RE -
HEMELRE HERSE RE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BETIT BT
COST 5%
At 1 January 2009 RZZEZNF—HA—H 409 292 488 1,189
Additions b3 — 82 — 82
Disposals HE (341) (60) — (401)
At 31 December 2009 R-ZEZNFE
+=—A=+—8H 68 314 488 870
Additions g — 256 885 1,141
Disposals k= — (164) (70) (234)
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE—ZF
+=B=+-—H 68 406 1,303 1,777
DEPRECIATION e
At 1 January 2009 RZZETZNEFE—H—H 33 179 444 656
Provided for the year INF EHHE 38 37 22 97
Disposals L& (53) (13) — (66)
At 31 December 2009 R-_ZEZTNF
+=-A=+—8 18 203 466 687
Provided for the year INF EH 14 49 64 127
Disposals HE — (160) (50) (210)
At 31 December 2010 R-E—-ZF
+=B=+-—AH 32 92 480 604
CARRYING VALUES BREE
At 31 December 2010 R=-Z—ZF
+=-—HA=+—H 36 314 823 1,173
At 31 December 2009 RZZEZTNF
+=—A=+—8© 50 1M 22 183
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE—_ZT—ZF+_-_A=+—HIFE

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 17.9)% - BMEKRRZRE @

EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are Lt - BE REREEERAESEEAT
depreciated on a straight line basis at the following rates per FRFE :

annum:

Leasehold improvements 20% HEMFEE 20%

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 20% RE - HEREME 20%

Motor vehicles 20% aE 20%

A Z BREFEB 823,000t 2E—2FH
BMEMERTRHAEZEEZRIAEHS41,000
T(CEZAFT-A=+—0: 8) -

The net book value of motor vehicles of HK$823,000 includes
an amount of HK$541,000 (31 December 2009: Nil) in respect
of assets held under finance leases.

18.GOODWILL 18.5 8
Property Toy products
agency trading Total
MERE DAEREER st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T T T BT I
COST 5%
At 1 January 2009, R=ZZFZThF—H—AH "
31 December 2009 and —EENF+_A=+—H
31 December 2010 k=2-2F+=-A=+—H 429,960 4,201 434,161
IMPAIRMENT e
At 1 January 2009 and RZZEZhF—HA—AH
31 December 2009 RZZTENFE+-_H=+—H 173,960 4,201 178,161
Impairment loss recognised REEEHERZMEBE
in the year 164,000 — 164,000
At 31 December 2010 R-ZB-ZBF+=-A=+—8H 337,960 4,201 342,161
NET CARRYING AMOUNT BREFE
At 31 December 2010 R-E—ZF+=-A=+—8 92,000 — 92,000
At 31 December 2009 RZBEZNF+=—A=+—~1H 256,000 — 256,000
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash generating units BB EERBEBSHMERZREESE

("CGU") identified according to business segment. The entire
net carrying amount of goodwill as at 31 December 2010 and
2009 have been allocated to the group of CGUs comprising
the property agency segment. The goodwill allocated to the
toy products trading segment located in Hong Kong has been
fully impaired in 2007.

LL(FE%%EE Ef]) - R_T—FFER—
ZENF+TA=+—0  BEZ2HEREF
BRI IRERSELENAS (BEMER
EHE) o E%&"Eﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\iﬁ\%ziﬁﬁﬁﬁqﬁ
DEZEE  YER_ZETLFEERE

)HIHH
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—

18. GOODWILL (Continued)

—ZEF+_A=1+—HItFE
18.B 8 »

PROPERTY AGENCY

The recoverable amount of the property agency CGUs was
based on its value-in-use and was determined with the
assistance of BMI Appraisals Limited, an independent
professional qualified valuer not connected with the Group.
These calculation uses cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a five-
year period, and at a discount rate of 15.94% (2009: 10.47 %).
Cash flows for the five-year period were extrapolated using a
3% (2009: 10%) growth rate in considering the economic
conditions of the market.

The estimated growth rates used are comparable to the
growth rate for the industry. Other key assumptions for the
value in use calculations relate to the estimation of cash
inflows which include budgeted sales and gross margin. Such
estimation is based on the unit's past performance and
management’'s expectations for market development
including deteriorated sentiment for property sales due to
high fluctuation of property price and property transaction
volume in Hong Kong commenced since the second half year
of 2010, which cast doubt on the potential profitability in the
property agency in Hong Kong. The management of the
Company therefore was of the opinion that their previous
expectation on the potential profitability could not be met
and as a result, goodwill was impaired accordingly.

The carrying amount of the unit was determined to be higher
than its recoverable amount and an impairment loss of
HK$164,000,000 (2009: Nil) was recognised. The impairment
loss was allocated fully to goodwill and is presented on the
face of consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

=% =
19. TRADE AND OTHER 19.FE IR BR 7 % H fib FE UK 718
RECEIVABLES
2010 2009
—E-Z2F —EENF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables JiE W B 31 37,156 36,820
Allowance for doubtful debts REREAE (1,073) (1,816)
36,083 35,004
Deposits, prepayments, e - B REAE WK FHIE
and other receivables 6,809 7256
42,892 42,260
For toy products trading segment, the Group allows an RMEAEMBENDHME - AEBEREESE
average credit period ranging from 30 to 90 days to its trade FHTFPINTFT=TENTHZEER - 3t
customers. For property agency segment, the customers are ERBHIME @ BREBEEER KA HH
obliged to settle the amounts upon completion of the relevant BENRAEE I - I — MU EEREEER
agreements and generally no credit facilities are granted. BE
The aged analysis of accounts receivables net of allowance FEUBR IR (GOBR RERE M) MR E A RIRERER
for doubtful debts presented based on the invoice date at Z2FZERRDMAT ¢
the end of the reporting period is as follows:
2010 2009
—E-=fF —ZTThEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Accounts receivables JE Y BR 3R
0-30 days 0% 30H 10,486 18,077
31-60 days 31£60H 5,459 4,959
61-90 days 61£290H 5,107 3,431
91-180 days 91H=180H 7915 4,196
Over 180 days 180H A £ 7,116 4,341
36,083 35,004
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19. TRADE AND OTHER 19.FE R BR FX & H b FE IR F3E ()

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in the Group's accounts receivable balance are
debtors with aggregate carrying amount of HK$15,893,000
(2009: HK$9,057,000) which are past due as at the reporting
date for which the Group has not provided for impairment
loss because management is of the opinion that the
fundamental credit quality of these customers has not
deteriorated.

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will assess
and understand the potential customer'’s credit quality and
defines its credit limits. Credit limits attributed to each
customer are reviewed regularly. Majority of the accounts
receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have no
default payment history.

AGEING OF ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLES
WHICH ARE PAST DUE BUT NOT IMPAIRED

AEEZ BUERSEHRERREE BHEEN
4R {55 %615,893,0007T (ZZEZE NG : B
%9,057,00070) 2 MR - ARNERERR
EREPMENGEERYEEE - fiAKE
3 4 Bt L 1F OB (E B 1 B -

AEB R EREMRELATG AN T #E
EEFPZEEEENEBTRFEERSE - §82F
FzEERBHEEMRRT - A& L EaH
SR B 2 M8 UAR R I M R R RS 8% e

€ 8 H B R B 2 B W R =K AR iR

2010 2009
—E-=F —ZEFENF
HK$000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Overdue by: BH
1 — 90 days 1290H 13,959 6,793
91 — 180 days 91HZ=180H 1,546 1,603
Over 180 days 180H A £ 388 661
15,893 9,057
MOVEMENTS IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR RIRBEED
DOUBTFUL DEBTS
2010 2009
—E-2F —EFNEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
At 1 January n—H—H 1,816 2,101
Impairment losses recognised R ER RFER < BB E 18
on receivables 77 399
Amounts recovered during the year FRNEWE S EE (820) (676)
Amounts written back during the year AR [E ¢ 58 - (8)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 1,073 1,816
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (Continued)

MOVEMENT INTHE ALLOWANCE FOR
DOUBTFUL DEBTS (continued)

Included in the allowance for doubtful debts are individually
impaired trade receivables with an aggregate balance of
HK$1,073,000 (31 December 2009: HK$1,816,000). The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

20.INVESTMENTS HELD FOR

19.FE W R RX I H Ath TR IR IR ()

REREEZDH »

REEBEBRIEERERERBKER - &8R4
&#1,073,000T (CETEAF+—A=1+—
B : #%1,816,0007T) ° NEBWEZ S
BEFEAEER -

20.5FEE 2 RE

TRADING
Investments held for trading at the end of the reporting period RBERRZIFEEEZRERE
included:
2010 2009
—E-ZF —TETAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Listed securities: EWES
— equity securities listed in Hong Kong — &S F 2 lRAES 47,595 —
Investments in wine future (note) R ERE (M) 8,414 —
56,009 —

note:

The fair value of the investments in wine future was determined based on
market price provided by a well-known wine and spirit merchant, which
were determined with reference to the underlying value of wine.

21.CONVERTIBLE NOTES
DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

During the year, the Group purchased convertible notes with
principal amount of HK$16,500,000 issued by Hanny Holdings
Limited (“Hanny CN 2011") and US$5,000,000 (approximately
HK$38,798,000) issued by Crosby Capital Limited (“Crosby CN
2011") for consideration of HK$12,540,000 and US$1,500,000
(approximately HK$11,675,000), respectively. These convertible
notes were designated by the Group as financial assets through
profit or loss. Hanny CN 2011 carries interest at 2% per annum
with maturity on 15 June 2011 at redemption price of 100% of the
principal amount. The initial conversion price of Hanny CN 2011 is
HK$9 per share and subject to anti-dilutive adjustments, and had
been further adjusted to HK$15.83 per share as a result of the
issuer’s anti-dilutive adjustments. Crosby CN 2011 is a zero coupon
convertible note with maturity on 8 March 2011 at redemption
price of 116.1% of the principal amount.

CEX

BEREREZ ATEDER —RKAREEE KA
ERERE IS ERET - ARFERARER

EE -
21. 5 EE QX FEIIRL AR
mZ A BRRERE

FN - AEE D BIAREE12,540,0007T K%
1,500,0003< 7T (4978 %11,675,0007T) * B A
SRR EERERARRSHEAERAR]
1T - A2 5D B AHBE16,500,0007T (5582
—E——FrRER]) 5,000,000% 7T (49
7&5138,798,0007T) ([Hi#l =& ——F Al %
ZR|) 2R ERE o It E AR EREAE
EiEEABBBRYEZVIEEAE - 3 -
——E AR ERIR2 % EN R ERAN
T——FXNA+ABIHRIEARESEE 2100%
fEE - R - T ——F AR IR 2 V1P H iR
EBAERBEEIT  WAEITRESEAE - A
BOAZRESHEME - SRAEZFREE
15.83TL e Ml —_E——FAREBRATE
AT EE - AR T ——F = AN\ B HE
BARGE2116.1%EE -

89
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 BE—_Z—ZF+_A=+—HIFE

Bank balances and cash comprises cash held by the Group
and short-term bank deposits that are interest-bearing of
0.01% (2009: 0.05% to 2.85%) and have original maturity of
three months or less.
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e
21.CONVERTIBLE NOTES 21. j:lét'ﬁE? NEEGIBRIEFTAE
DESIGNATED AS AT FAIR VALUE mZ A BREE @
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
The Group disposed of Crosby CN 2011 for a consideration of NEBEFANUARE2,143,000% 7T (LB
US$2,143,000 (approximately HK$16,680,000) during the year 16,680, 000713) HESH_T——FBRE
and a gain on fair value change of HK$5,005,000 was & mMAFEZES KB 5,005,0007TE R
recognised in profit or loss. B WﬁEWU @
At the end of the reporting period, a gain on fair value change RIEFEER - BE T ——FBREE A
of the Hanny CN 2011 of HK$3,613,000 was recognised in FEZ BB 3,613,000 2 K 1B A
profit or loss. The fair value of Hanny CN 2011 as at RoE—FT——FAMREREN T —TF
31 December 2010 consists of debt component and +ZA=+—HZ2AFEBSEEIH KRR
conversion option component. B o
The methods and assumptions applied for the valuation of RE T —— Fr R EIRRACBERER
Hanny CN 2011 are as follows: RFHINWT -
VALUATION OF DEBT COMPONENT BEHD 2EE
The fair value of debt component was calculated based on BB DT EDIRBEEOEEZBEREESR
the present value of contractually determined stream of future SRATEREEMBCRENE - BEE2R
cash flows discounted at the required yield, which was ENE2EN BIREIRET A 2 BREERRR
determined with reference to the assumed credit risk of the FHTEEMSEMET - R —TF+=
convertible notes issuer and remaining time to maturity. The A=+—8  AIRKREBREBH SRR B H
effective interest rate of the debt component of convertible ZEBFER9.46% °
note as at date of subscription is 9.46% as at
31 December 2010.
VALUATION OF CONVERSION OPTION HBRERD 2HE
COMPONENT
Binomial Tree Model is used for valuation for conversion option A IR v IR s o A A E B RA
component of convertible notes. The inputs into the model &1E - RIREER - AIRRERE A 2
of the convertible notes as at end of the reporting period are BINE :
as follows:
Hanny CN 2011 HRE_ZEZ——FABRRERE
Stock price HK$0.32 f& (& BE0.327T
Expected life of option 0.46 year HRETEET B 0.46%
Risk-free interest rate 0.31% 3 b A1 0.31%
Volatility of the underlying stock 50.50% HEEREE R 50.50%
Dividend yield 0% Bx 0%
22.BANK BALANCES AND CASH 22 BRITHEBRIRE

RITEHR LA 2 BREAEBMFRE KIZ0.01
E(ZZTN%F : 0.05EZE2.85E) 2 MXE
BREEA A=A ARNZ EERITIERK °
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

23.NON-CURRENT ASSETS 23 AR ELEZERDEE
CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

HK$'000

BT T
At 1 January 2009 RZZEENF—H—AH —
Transferred from investment properties B 3% & ¥ % 14,106
At 31 December 2009 RZBBNF+ZA=+—H 14,106
Disposal k= (14,106)
At 31 December 2010 R-ZE-Z2F+=-A=+—H —
On 15 December 2009, the Group entered into an agreement RZZZENFTA+HA - A5EEBLE
with an independent third party for the disposal of the Group's = HELAR(EEE18,200,0007T HE AR EE K
investment properties at a consideration of HK$18,200,000. BEWERI S B o Bt - R=ZZFZNF+A
Accordingly, the carrying amount of investment properties =+—H - KEWEZREEENYAFIEL
was reclassified as non-current assets held for sale and EZERBDEE  WNRA SRR BILE
presented separately in the consolidated statement of | o
financial position as at 31 December 2009.
The transaction was completed on 25 February 2010 and a ZERGER_E—EF_A-_+HHZEK -
gain on disposal of non-current assets classified as held for iS5 AFRHELE 2 IERBNE B« W B 1
sale of HK$4,084,000 was recognised in the consolidated 4,084,000 E R iR A 2 E NS R AR ©

statement of comprehensive income.

24.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24.FE S BRF R H At FE (S FIE

2010 2009

—E-ZF —EENF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

Trade payables FETRBR K 24,393 22,673
Other payables E & 5R78 106,234 24,796
130,627 47469
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24.TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24 FEFERF R M RE @)

(Continued)

The following is an analysis of trade payable by age presented
based on invoice date.

ENERRREZBH2N ZREDTAT -

2010 2009

—E-ZF —ZTENEF

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

0-30 days 0£30H 5,006 8,528
31-60 days 31£60H 1,701 3,319
61-90 days 61290H 4,353 2,179
91-180 days 91£180H 6,657 3,713
Over 180 days 180H LA £ 6,676 4,934
24,393 22,673

The average credit period on purchases of goods is 90 — 120
days.

The payables and accruals mainly comprise of the deposits
received, receipts in advance, accrued salary and other sundry
creditors.

At 31 December 2010, included in the Group’s trade and other
payables was provision for losses on litigation of
approximately HK$83.5 million made in accordance with the
Judgment, details of which are set out in note 33.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2010, the directors
of the Company, after taking advice from its solicitors, have
determined that provision for losses on litigation be
recognised and estimated to include (a) the Debt and the
interest thereon; and (b) plaintiff costs and the interest
thereon. As set out in note 33, there will be a hearing on 11
April 2011 before the trial judge to deal with the application
for such cost and interest.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE—_ZT—ZF+_-_A=+—HIFE

25.CONVERTIBLE NOTES 25. A/ R E &
The carrying values of the liability, derivative and equity REBRARGZAIRERRIBEZEE  TET
component of the convertible notes of the Group are as BRE=ES 2 EERENRT -
follows:

July 2011 May 2011

Convertible Convertible Total
Notes Notes
=F-—-F Z=F——-F
+A A
ARREE TERRERE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T EEE T IT BT T
(note a) (note b)
(Pt 7 a) (B =Eb)
Liability component =R g5
Net carrying amounts at RZZEZNF—HA—AH
1 January 2009 REFE 117,352 — 117,352
Net carrying amounts on initial recognition #3255 BR B H B — 13,525 13,525
Interest charge FEZH 7302 508 7,810
Interest paid EIFIE (2,600) (84) (2,684)
Exercise of convertible notes TR AR AR =R — (13,949) (13,949)
Net carrying amounts at RZZEZNF+ZH
31 December 2009 =+—BEREFE 122,054 — 122,054
Interest charge FMEZH 5,847 — 5,847
Interest paid BT H A (2,002) — (2,002)
Redemption of convertible notes fE B AT R A% = 1% (57,488) — (57488)
Net carrying amounts at R-ZE—-Z2F+=A
31 December 2010 =t+-—HEREFE 68,411 — 68,411
Derivative component FTETAESS
Net carrying amounts at 1 January 2009 R-ZZh4&—HF—H
REFE — — —
Net carrying amounts on initial recognition #]# ¥ 32k BR /R (& — 53,936 53,936
Changes in fair value of derivative MESRIA
financial instruments Z N EEE — 77,801 77801
Realised on exercise of conversion rights 17{# 5 # i & 15 — (131,737) (131,737)
Net carrying amounts at R=ZZEEAE+=A
31 December 2009 and 2010 =t—8AK
—E-ZH+=A
=+—HEEFE — — —
Equity component R
At 1 January 2009 and /?A_§TH¢ A—H
31 December 2009 —ZEENEFE+ZR
_+ H 14,679 — 14,679
Redemption of convertible notes fE [/ AT R A = % (6,775) — (6,775)
Net carrying amounts at R-ZE—-Z2F+=A
31 December 2010 =t+-—HEREFE 7,904 — 7,904
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—TF+_A=+—HIFE

(A) JULY 2011 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (A) =ZE——FtATRREE

On 23 July 2008, the Company issued HK$130,000,000
3-year 2% convertible notes (the “July 2011 Convertible
Notes”) at 100% of principal amount to Mr. Ng as part
of the consideration for the acquisition of C21 Group.

At the option of the noteholders, the noteholders have
the right, subject to restrictions stated below, to convert
in whole or any part of the outstanding principal amount
of the July 2011 Convertible Notes into ordinary shares
of the Company of HK$0.125 each at any time from the
15th day after the date of issue up to and including the
date which is 15 days prior to the maturity date at the
initial conversion price of HK$0.1375 per share. The
conversion price is subject to adjustment on the
occurrence of dilutive or concentrative event. Following
the capital reorganisation and the share placings as
disclosed in note 27, the conversion price was adjusted
to HK$8.36 per ordinary share of HK$0.01 each with
effect from 7 December 2010. Unless previously
converted, the Company will redeem the July 2011
Convertible Notes of its principal amount outstanding
on 23 July 2011 at par.

The noteholders of the July 2011 Convertible Notes shall
not exercise any conversion right attaching to the July
2011 Convertible Notes or to such an extent that results
or will result in (i) the noteholder and parties acting in
concert with it (within the meaning under the Hong Kong
Code on Takeovers and Mergers) beneficially holding
more than 29% (or such percentage as may from time
to time be specified in the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers
and Mergers as being the level for triggering a
mandatory general offer) of the then enlarged issued
share capital of the Company at the relevant date of
conversion of the July 2011 Convertible Notes; or (ii)
the Company in breach of any provision of the Listing
Rules, including the requirement to maintain the
prescribed minimum percentage (currently being 25%)
of the issued share capital of the Company held by the
public (as defined in the Listing Rules), unless prior
approval or waiver has been obtained from the Stock
Exchange.

21 HOLDINGS LIMITED

MNZZEENF+AZ+=0 AQFIR
100% RN BMREERETAER
130,000,00070 2 = F HA2% Al i 2=
([Z2——F LA ER]) ' BB
WHEHL2IEE 2B RE -

BEBRAAZEE ZEBESAABHE
(E TR BIPTARR T) R E#1T AR5
BRZZHEANE (BFEER) 1L B
Bl —F——FLARKRERZ2E
HAEMIMEAREERNSBIRVIT LRE
FRABM0.13IBTTHBARARR 2 EB
MR RREEE150.1257T » HAAE AT 1
EEERAHEHTRE - R E27H
BeBRAEERBRMNEEER - LRED
AEEFREERE0TZEERR
B¥e3er BT —FTF+_-HLH
AR - BRIERRERR SR BRIALR
AR EEBERRN T ——F A=+
ZAARBEAREEZ —FT——F LA
BERE -

W17 —F——F £ AR EEHT
ZRABMEBER B EEN —F——Fr
BREEREARE-BRTHAL (RS
FERRWERAHTRIME T 28%)
EnBARE_T——F+ATRRE
BRABBMER ZEBARNRARIDET
BAHEIB29% (REA R AWE LG HF
ST RIS B 4% 7E 75 A8 35 0% il 1 2 T W B 3
ZZBRBADL) A LR (i) ARE
ERETRAERG - BREERLR
AL (EBRR LTRADFAEARRACH
TTIRAZHEEKER 7L GREE525%)
ME - BRIERSB XA E T sk #
% BR=—FT——F L ABRRERR
BANGITEER S RENNEZREE
ZHER -
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(A) JULY 2011 CONVERTIBLE NOTES

(B)

(Continued)

The convertible notes contain two components, liability
and equity elements. The equity element is presented
in equity under the heading of “convertible notes
reserve” The effective interest rate of the liability
component of the convertible notes is at 6.25%.

On 2 July 2010, the Group has completed a negotiation
with certain noteholders and mutually agreed to early
redeem the July 2011 Convertible Notes at
HK$57,000,000, a discount of 5% of its principal amount
of HK$60,000,000. The consideration paid was first
allocated to the liability component with the residual of
HK$6,436,000 being assigned to the repurchase of the
equity component. A gain on early redemption of
convertible notes of HK$8,059,000 was recongised in
the profit or loss.

No July 2011 Convertible Notes were converted into
ordinary shares of the Company during both years.

The principal amount outstanding as at the end of the
reporting period was HK$70,000,000 (2009:
HK$130,000,000).

MAY 2011 CONVERTIBLE NOTES

On 15 May 2009, the Company issued 2-year 2.25%
convertible notes with an aggregate principal amount
of HK$18,000,000 (the “May 2011 Convertible Notes”).
The May 2011 Convertible Notes are convertible into
shares of the Company at an initial conversion price of
HK$0.18 per share at any time from the 15th day after
the date of issue up to and including the date which is
15 days prior to the maturity date of the May 2011
Convertible Notes. Besides the anti-dilution
adjustments, the conversion price will be adjusted to
the average closing price of the shares of the Company
for the five trading days ending on the day immediately
preceding the date of a relevant conversion notice, if
lower than HK$0.18, but subject to a limit of not less
than HK$0.15.

As the conversion price is subject to adjustments, the
conversion option will be settled other than by a fixed
number of the Company'’s shares, the conversion option
is regarded as derivative.

(A) =Z2——FtATBKRERE

(B)

(&)

AR EEDEEERRAMIBS K
AR 25 5 AR R B E =
] - AIRRER 2 BEH D 2 ERFIE
7556.25% ©

R-BE—ZTELA-H AEEEEK
HETEREEAERT ARREINS
¥57,000,000 T (R A & 588 &
60,000,0007C#75#5%) 12 R &R —ZF —
—F+ AR RRERE  c ENREFLD
Ea@Emn: MEABKSEBE
6,436,000 TR D B E fE Bz 2 (0 © 32
P HE O] AT R AR 22 4k 2 W 7 #58,059,000
TTERIBIRER -

BE_T——F L ABRREENPF
NER BB R R E B -

RBEERERBER 2 AL EABE
70,000,000 (ZEZ L F : B
130,000,0007T) °

“E-—FHATHKRERE

R-EBEZANFRA+ERB ' KAREST
K& 4% 75%18,000,0007T 2 /4 Hf
2.25% A MBREHR([ZZE——FH AT
BWIRERE]) BT ——FH AR
ERRTHEFETREREE T ——F
A AR ERDBBAR TR A L (21F
ZAB) - AIBER R R E T RRE
0.18TL R B AR ARG o b REEHA
BON - IR AR EE R B 0.187T - R
BERWAEAZEAERRBAMEEH
AI— B IEREAR S A AR ARG 2 F5
WTHE @ ENFERABE0.15TT o

MR IRER TIAFE - LBREKEIA
RRAREERDEE ANz TTAEE -
mEBRERRBITE
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—TF+_A=+—HIFE

25.CONVERTIBLE NOTES (continved) 25. 7 IR R =

(B) MAY 2011 CONVERTIBLE NOTES (B) —E——FHATRREE

(Continued)

Accordingly, the May 2011 Convertible Notes have been
split into liability and derivative components upon initial
recognition. The excess of the fair values of the liability
and derivative components over the net proceeds from
the issue of the May 2011 Convertible Notes have been
recognised as the fair value loss on the derivative
component of the May 2011 Convertible Notes in the
profit or loss.

The derivative component of the May 2011 Convertible
Notes is revalued to its fair value using Binominal model
at the reporting date and change in fair values is
recognised as an expense in the profit or loss. During
the year ended 31 December 2009, the fair value loss
resulted from initial recognition and revaluation at date
of conversion was HK$127,262,000.

In July 2009, the entire principal amount of the May
2011 Convertible Notes has been converted at the
conversion price of HK$0.18 per share and accordingly
99,999,994 shares have been issued and allotted. The
fair value of the derivative component and the amortised
cost of the liability component of the May 2011
Convertible Notes at the conversion dates were
transferred to and recorded as the share capital and
share premium of the Company.

| ANNUAL REPORT 2010

(#&)

At - —F——FHAABEERERY]
FHREHROSABERITETARD -
BERTATARY 2R FERRHUEE
T—F——FAAARBRREMEIAR
FE D NERARRR/ T ——
FRABRBREETETARO AT
BEE -

—E——FRANERERZITETA
BHRBREARER—_BAEREZER
FE - WA BEARRAFE2ES -
HE-ZZhF+ZA=+—HLHF
B BUSHRARLBRABREMSI B2
A EEEAE%127,262,0007T °

R-BZRELH —E——FRAA
BRER A BERALBRETRAEE
0.18TEZ2E A1 - AT RAEE
99,999,994k % 1n - —E——F A AT
BREENTETABHcAFERAE
BB EKAERARERERER
ABRBARRAZBA KRN EE




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e BRI
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26.BEMESE

26.0BLIGATIONS UNDER A

FINANCE LEASE

It is the Group's policy to lease its motor vehicles under
finance lease. The average lease term is 32 months (2009:
Nil). Interest rates underlying obligations under a finance lease
are fixed at contract date of 1.8% per annum. The Group has
an option to purchase the motor vehicle for a nominal amount

at the end of the lease terms. No arrangements have been

entered into for rental payments.

AEE 2 BRIRERERNOBERE - F15
HEA=1T_EACZETAF : &) - BEMA
EEERABNEXERAHNANMBEERESF
1.8% - AEEAERENEERRUAEEREE
TE o WEMS NSRS ERZHE -

Present value

Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
BEEAEMNRK BREHENRZEE
2010 2009 2010 2009
—E-ZTF —"ZTNF ZE-ZTF —ZTTNF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T 7S IT BET T B IT
Amounts payable under R IR & AR 4
finance lease IR
Within one year —F A 197 — 179 —
In more than one year and #RiE—%F - B ERiBE
not more than five years R4 31 — 301 —
508 — 480 —
Less: future finance charges & @ A& g&E & A (28) — - —
Present value of MEEETZRE
lease obligation 480 — 480 —
Less: Amount due for N A it [ = 7N BB
settlement within ZFIE (275
12 months (shown ERBARE)
under current
liabilities) (179) =
Amount due for settlement X+ —1{& A % 2| #A
after 12 months Z 538 301 —

The Group’s obligations under a finance lease are secured by

the lessors' title to the leased assets.

AEEZREHEEENALBEAMEEEE

ZREREEER -
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27.SHARE CAPITAL 27. [ 7
Number
of shares Share capital
R EE R
'000 HK$'000
T BT
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares Rl
At 1 January 2009, at HK$0.125 each RZZEENE—F—H "
BRREEEE0.125T 4,000,000 500,000
Share consolidation of 20 ordinary shares “TREREEE%0.125T
of HK$0.125 each into 1 ordinary share Lakattr—k
of HK$2.50 each BREEEE2.50T
ZEER (3,800,000) =
Share subdivision Rt 75 4 49,800,000 —
At 31 December 2009 and RZZEENFETZA=T—-HRK
31 December 2010 at HK$0.01 each “Z-EF+-A=1+-H-
EREEEY0.011 50,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRAR
Ordinary shares TR
At 1 January 2009, at HK$0.125 each RZTZNE—A—F
BREERE0.125T 1,251,646 156,456
Share consolidation of 20 ordinary shares of Z+REREESL0.125T
HK$0.125 each into 1 ordinary share of ZERREHA—RER
HK$2.50 each (note a) EEEE2.50T 2 LR
(ika) (1,189,064) =
Capital reduction (note a) IR AR A (Y 3Ea) — (155,830)
Issue of shares upon placing of shares REERMDMETRR (H3Eb)
(note b) 198,800 1,988
Conversion rights of the May 2011 —E2——FRANBARKRE
Convertible Notes exercised RBERETE 100,000 1,000
Shares issued under rights issue (note c) Rt BT TR (P c) 1,445,529 14,455
At 31 December 2009 at HK$0.01 each RZEZNFE+-A=+—H" 1,806,911 18,069
Issue of shares upon placing of shares BREEAB0.0I TRE SRS
(note d) TR 1A (i zEd) 447,000 4,470
Share consolidation of 20 ordinary shares of “+REREESE0.01T2 EER
HK$0.01 each into 1 ordinary share of AbtE—RERAEEK0.20T
HK$0.20 each; and reduction par value of ZEBRR REREAHRHEE
each consolidated share from HK$0.20 AE0 207 AR ZE S %0.017T
to HK$0.01 (note e) GiED) (2,141,215) (21,412)
At 31 December 2010 R-B-B+-f=+-H 112,696 1,127
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27.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Pursuant to a special resolution passed in a special general
meeting of the Company, the Company effected a capital
reorganisation on 12 February 2009 which involved:

(i) Every twenty shares of HK$0.125 each in both the issued
and unissued share capital of the Company were
consolidated into one consolidated share of HK$2.50;

(i)~ The par value of each issued consolidated share was
reduced from HK$2.50 to HK$0.01 by cancellation of
HK$2.49 of the paid-up capital on each consolidated
share;

(iii)  Each of the authorized but unissued consolidated share
in the capital of the Company of par value of HK$2.50
was subdivided into 250 shares of par value of HK$0.01
each;

(iv)  The entire amount of the share premium account of the
Company was cancelled; and

(v)  The credit arising from the capital reduction and the
share premium reduction was applied to eliminate the
accumulated losses of the Company.

Pursuant to a placing agreement dated 17 December 2008,
130,000,000 Shares and 25,300,000 Shares were issued and
allotted at a consideration of HK$0.15 per Share on 31 March
2009 and 14 May 2009 respectively.

Further, pursuant to a placing agreement dated 21 September
2009, 43,500,000 Shares were issued and allotted at a
consideration of HK$0.42 per Share on 29 September 2009.

An ordinary resolution was passed in a special general meeting
of the Company on 23 November 2009 to approve a rights
issue on the basis of four rights shares for every one share
held by the shareholders on the register of members on 23
November 2009 at a subscription price of HK$0.10 per rights
share. The rights issue became unconditional on 14 December
2009 and 1,445,529,192 shares were issued and allotted on
21 December 2009 for a total cash consideration, before share
issue expenses, of approximately HK$144,552,000.

e BRI

—ZEF+_A=1+—HIFE
27.BR 7 ()

B &t

a.  BRERAQRBRRFEIIANSESFRIRARE
B ARAR-ZEEANF A+ -_HETR
REH - B

()  ARBEBITRABETREANE -+
MR G AR EE B #0.125 T2 IRID & 0T 5
—RERmEEE2.50T2 40K

7

(il HEFHBREMBRDZEHEREE
2.497C * BERBHITAHKM 2|
BERBE250THIRESE0.017T

(i)  ARRBRAGEREEEE2.50m2
EEBREITE RO R0 E
fRE(EE#0.017T 2 k15

(iv) EHARE R EER ZRPEER ¢
&

v BB R AR (R BT 5 Bl
ERBEREMBEARR 2 ZHEE -

b. $E}J*Elﬁéﬁ7%f§§}\¢+_ﬂ+t52@ﬂ'§
Tﬁ%n% SRR —EEAF=A=+—AKk=
771¢£H+EEILMHTH§/%%O.157E

17 X% AL % 130,000,0004% % 25,300,000/% A%

1/'\ ®

AN BRE-FZEAFAA -+ —AZEE
B R_EEAFANA - THhBERTKRE
#0.427T 2 (B %17 Al 3 43,500,000/% i

1/'\ ®

c. RIZEZNF+—AZF+=BZARARR
BFRAREg L —HELBRRAZRESELE A
BOE IR R (B B IR ARAR (5 A ¥E0. 1070 1T
AR EEBR-_ZTTNAE+—A=+=8
HZHIRR B BRREREE RGO ERED

B D - IR =TT hEFE+ A+
B AEEE  YR_TETNF+_A=+
— B %17 A0 1,445,629,1920 817 - 1Bk
BHNBETERMZARESRENABE
144,552,0007T °
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27.SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

d. Pursuant to a placing agreement dated 4 January 2010,
72,000,000 Shares were issued and allotted at a consideration
of HK$0.15 per share on 12 January 2010.

Further, pursuant to a placing agreement dated 26 April 2010,
375,000,000 Shares were issued and allotted at a consideration
of HK$0.133 per share on 3 May 2010.

e. Pursuant to a special resolution passed in a special general
meeting of the Company , the Company effected a capital
reorganisation (the “Capital Reorganisation”) on 7 December
2010 which involved:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

every twenty issued shares of par value HK$0.01 each
in the share capital of the Company be consolidated into
one issued share of par value HK$0.20;

the issued share capital of the Company be reduced by
cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$0.19
on each of the issued Consolidated Shares such that
the nominal value of each of the issued Consolidated
Shares of the Company be reduced from HK$0.20 to
HK$0.01;

the entire amount standing to the credit of the share
premium account of the Company be cancelled and the
authorised share capital of the Company shall remain
unchanged; and

the credit arising from the capital reduction and the share
premium cancellation be credited to the contributed
surplus account of the Company and the directors of
the Company (“Directors”) be and are hereby authorised
to apply the amount in the contributed surplus account
of the Company to set off the accumulated loss of the
Company in the manner permitted by the laws of
Bermuda and the bye-laws of the Company without
further authorisation from the shareholders of the
Company.

Details of the Capital Reorganisation were set out in the circular
of the Company dated 12 November 2010.
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 HBE_T—ZTF+_A=+—HILFE

INFORMATION ABOUTTHE 27A. EEAX QBB AR R E
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ZEHR
POSITION OFTHE COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of EBEARRARNMERARTBRARZE
the Company at the end of the reporting period is as B
follows:
2010 2009
—E-2F —ZEENF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
ihg=a BT T BT
TOTAL ASSETS B EARE
Investments in subsidiaries KRB RRZ&E 1 1
Amounts due from subsidiaries & U B 8 R RIFRIE 158,504 279,182
Other receivables H b e W 5KI8 556 112
Investments held for trading BIEEBEZKE 8,414 —
Bank balances and cash RITEHRERS 35,816 85,670
203,291 364,965
TOTAL LIABILITIES R
Other payables E & SR8 86,031 3,012
Convertible notes Al AR iR 68,411 122,054
154,442 125,066
NET ASSETS BEFE 48,849 239,899
CAPITAL AND RESERVES A& 7R R i s
Share capital (Note 27) A&7 (fF5E27) 1,127 18,069
Reserves et (a) 47,722 221,830
48,849 239,899
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For the year ended 31 December 2010 EHZE—

27A.

Note:

(a)

—BEt-A=t-RILFE

LA
INFORMATION ABOUTTHE 27A. EREA QBB BEARR T
> M2
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL 2E
POSITION OF THE COMPANY
Bt 5 -
Reserves (a) i
Convertible
notes
Share Contributed equity  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve losses Total
TEREE
BRAEE B4R ERfE 2HEE g
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Vit R BET T BETT BETT Vit R
(note b)
(B Eh)
At 1 January 2009 i 168,098 49,948 14,679 (332,514) (99,789)
Loss for the year and total comprehensive REEBERAER2HE
expense for the year Fgtd — — — (144,252) (144,252)
Elimination of accumulated losses upon ~ REIGIRAT #3425 18
capital reduction (168,098) — — 323,928 155,830
Issue of shares upon placing of shares ~ RRHEEMEITRI 39,577 — — — 39,577
Issue of shares upon conversion of the ~ E{BR-E——FHA
May 2011 Convertible Notes TRREEMETRA 144,686 — — — 144,686
Shares issued under rights issue RERMmETRG 130,097 — — — 130,097
Share issue expense RiARTER 4,319) — — — (4,319)
At 31 December 2009 RIBBAFTZA=1+—H 310,041 49,948 14,679 (152,838 221,830
Loss for the year and total comprehensive AEEERERAEEZMA
expense for the year bt - - - (244,017) (244,017)
Issue of shares upon placing of shares ARG EE METRR 56,205 - - - 56,205
Share issue expense K% TER (1,272) - - - (1,272)
Capital reduction FRAHI R - 21,412 - - 21,412
Share premium reduction Bin g ERRALR (364,974) 364,974 - 105,239 105,239
Partial redemption of convertible notes BB A ARTE - - (6,775) 339 (6,436)
Transfer BE - (105,239) - - (105,239)
At 31 December 2010 R-E-£+-B=1-H - 331,095 7904 (291,277) 47722
Contributed surplus (b) EHAH

The contribution surplus represented reduction in issued
share capital pursuant to a capital restructuring in 2004
and Capital Reorganisation in 2010. Under the Company
Law of Bermuda, the contributed surplus of the Company
is available for distribution. However, the Company
cannot declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution
out of contributed surplus if:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be,
unable to pay its liabilities as they become due; or

(ii)

the realisable value of the Company’s assets would

thereby be less than the aggregate of its liabilities
and its issued share capital and share premium.
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28.DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 28 EEFIBEEF
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax REREER - ANE B AR A 2R 2 R E
losses of HK$53,440,000 (2009: HK$44,046,000) available for FAFi I8 518 A7 #53,440,000C (Z BTN
offset against future profits that may be carried forward F : B%44,046,000T) @ ZEBIEEEIE
indefinitely. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in PR EAMh A5 EE o FR A EE DA ET A 2RI TSR + #
respect of such tax losses due to the unpredictability of future WEMZEREEEREREEHREEE °
profit streams.
29.0PERATING LEASES 29.K&EHE
THE GROUP AS LESSEE AEBAABEA
The Group made minimum lease payments paid under REEBBHAEMERFHRECERO &
operating leases in respect of office premises and shops of RABA T RH A 84,237,000 (ZZEZTh
approximately HK$4,237000 (2009: HK$3,921,000). & ¢ 5¥3,921,0007T) °
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had RBER  AEBHE T HBE 2 EEH
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non- 4 RRYIFE R 2 R R AR 50
cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: ™
2010 2009
—E-Z2F —ETNF
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Within one year —EW 2,589 3,063
In the second to fifth year inclusive ENF (RIEERMSF) 626 892
3,215 3,955
Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the KEBANRIEASBEN 2 & TYERED
Group for certain of its office premises and photocopying B2 ENHEE - KR - HeR —ERFHE
machines. Leases are negotiated and rentals are fixed for AT EEE) o

lease terms of one to five years.
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Pursuant to the resolution passed at a special general meeting
held on 17 September 2004, the Company adopted a new
share option scheme (the “Scheme”). The Company operates
the Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. The eligible participants of the
Scheme include the Company'’s or its subsidiaries’ executive
directors, non-executive directors and employees, and any
business consultants, agents, financial or legal advisers and
any other persons who the board of director consider, at its
sole discretion, will contribute or have contributed to the
Group.

The grant of share options should be accepted within 30 days
from the date of the grant, at a consideration of HK$1, being
payable by the grantee upon the acceptance of grant. The
options may be exercised at any time within the period
commencing from the date of grant of the options and expiring
on the date determined by the directors, but in any event
such exercise period shall not exceed a period of ten years
commencing on the date the relevant option is deemed to
be granted.

The exercise price of the share options was determinable by
the directors, but was not able to be less than the higher of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange'’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s daily quotation sheet
for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s share.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the maximum number of shares in
the Company in respect of which options may be granted
when aggregated with any other share option scheme of the
Company is not permitted to exceed 10% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the date of adoption of the
Scheme. Subject to the issue of a circular and the approval of
the shareholders of the Company in general meeting and/or
such other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules
from time to time, the board may refresh the limit at any
time to 10% of the total number of shares in issue as at the
date of approval by the shareholders of the Company in
general meeting. Notwithstanding the foregoings, the shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company at any time shall
not exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to time.

21 HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30.SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

(Continued)

No option may be granted to any person if the total number
of shares of the Company already issued and issuable to him
under all the options granted to him in any 12 month period
up to and including the date of grant exceeding 1% of total
number of shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any further
grant of options in excess of this 1% limit shall be subject to
the issue of a circular by the Company and the approval of
the shareholders in general meeting. Such participant and
his associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) abstaining from
voting and/or other requirements prescribed under the Listing
Rules from time to time. Options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors in
excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital or with a value
in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by
the Company's shareholders.

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, there were no outstanding
share options and there were no additional share options
granted for the years ended 31 December 2010 and 2009.

31.RETIREMENT BENEFITS

SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme for
all qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
schemes are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes the lower
of HK$1,000 or 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme,
which contribution is matched by employees.

30.} B8R ERTE| &
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32.RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES 2.AEATKE

COMPENSATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
PERSONNEL

The remuneration of directors and other members of key
management during the year is as follows:

FTEEEBAEBZHE

FRAEEFNHMIZEBEAEBZMESWT :

2010 2009
—E-=F —ZTThEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ok b
Short-term benefits EHARH 2,889 3,850
Post-employment benefits RIKEF 60 48
2,949 3,898

Companies under common control by ~ AR GHITE S EBIEH 2 QA

executive directors of the Company BN YA (FF5E)

Referral income received (note) - 100

note: Mr. Ng is a director and has beneficial interests in those
companies.

The remuneration of directors and key executives is
determined by the remuneration committee having regard to
the performance of individuals and market trends.

33.LITIGATION

On 8 October 2004, Mr. Kwok, a former director of the
Company, commenced legal proceedings (“the Action”)
against the Company in respect of the loans due from two
former subsidiaries of the Company, namely, Rockapetta
Industrial Company Limited and Grand Extend Investment
Limited, for a sum of approximately HK$44.5 million and
accrued interest thereof.

As at 31 December 2009, the Action was pending trial at High
Court with trial date of the Action fixed in January 2011. The
solicitors and counsel acting for the Company had received
the pleadings and all evidence disclosed in the Action and
they held good of their advice previously delivered to the
Company. With the advices of solicitors and counsel, the
directors were of the opinion that Mr. Kwok did not have a
valid claim against the Company and it was unlikely to have
any material adverse financial impact on the Company.
Therefore, no provision for any liability that may result was
made in the consolidated financial statements as of 31
December 2009.
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On 2 March 2011, the Judgment was handed down by the
Court of First Instance of the High Court and was awarded in
favour of Mr. Kwok. It was adjudged that the Company shall
pay Mr. Kwok the sum of HK$44.5 million together with
interest thereon and that there will be an order nisi for costs
against the Company on a party and party basis, details of
the liability are set out in note 24.

On 10 March 2011, the Company has received a statutory
demand for payment of judgment sum of HK$44.5 million to
Mr. Kwok within 21 days. It is stated in the statutory demand
that if it is not complied, the Company will be deemed to be
unable to pay its debts and Mr. Kwok will take actions against
the Company to recover the judgment sum of HK$44.5 million,
the interest thereon and costs, including proceedings under
the provisions of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance for the
winding up of the Company. After seeking advice from its
solicitors and counsel, the directors considered that the
Company has good grounds for appeal, and has instructed
its solicitors to launch an appeal against the Judgment. On
28 March 2011, a Notice of Appeal was filed with the Court
of Appeal and served on the parties concerned. Pending the
appeal, the Company has also instructed its solicitors to take
appropriate actions in response to the Judgment and the
statutory demand, including an application for a stay of
execution of the Judgment pending appeal.

Regarding the matter of costs and interest, the Company
issued summons returnable before the trial judge on 11 April
2011 seeking variation of the costs order nisi and at the same
time Mr. Kwok also issued summons returnable before the
trial judge on the same day to deal with the matter of costs
and interest.

Regarding the application for stay of execution of the
Judgment pending appeal, with the advice from its solicitors,
it is expected that such application will be finally disposed of
within 1 to 2 months after the date these consolidated
financial statements have been authorised for issue. The Court
may order a stay of execution of a Judgment pending appeal
on condition. However, the Court may require the payment
into the Court of the judgment sum and interest or its
provision of a bank guarantee for the same amount as
condition of stay. Should the Company fail in the application
for stay of execution to the trial judge, the Company may try
to make the application to the Court of Appeal.
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33.LITIGATION (continued) 33.5F 7 @)

Regarding the appeal, it is expected that such appeal would
be heard and disposed of by the Court of Appeal within 6 to
12 months from the date the consolidated financial
statements have been authorised for issue. The solicitors and
counsel acting for to the Company hold good of the likelihood
of success of such appeal. Should the appeal succeed, the
Company is not liable to pay the judgment sum together with
interest thereon to Mr. Kwok and the Company is entitled to
recover the costs from Mr. Kwok.

34.MAJOR NON-CASH

TRANSACTION

During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group entered
into finance lease arrangements in respect of assets with a
total capital value at the inception of the leases of
HK$560,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2009, 100,000,000
ordinary shares were issued upon exercise of conversion
rights of the May 2011 Convertible Notes.

35.EVENTS AFTERTHE END OF

REPORTING PERIOD

The Group has the following significant events subsequent
to the end of the reporting period:

() On 13 January 2011, the Company completed the issue of
1,126,955,740 rights shares at the subscription price of
HK$0.19 per rights share on the basis of ten rights shares
for every one share to raise approximately HK$214,120,000
before expenses. The net proceeds amounted to
HK$208,600,000 of which HK$170,000,000 has been used
for the payment of the consideration for acquisition of the
entire equity interest of Vigour Well Limited and
approximately HK$10,000,000 has been set aside for final
payment of consideration, and the remaining balance of
approximately HK$28,600,000 for the partial payment of
early redemption of July 2011 Convertible Notes.
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On 14 September 2010, the Company through its indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary, Asset Expert Limited, (the
“Purchaser”), completed negotiation and entered into
sale and purchase agreement with Prolific Wise Limited
(the “Vendor”) for the acquisition of the entire issued
share capital of Vigour Well Limited. The transaction was
approved by shareholders on 6 December 2010 from
which time it was conditional upon the completion of
the rights issue. Subsequently the conditions were
fulfilled and the transaction was completed on 18
January 2011 on which date control of the companies
acquired is transferred to the Group. The aggregate cash
consideration was of HK$180 million, in which the
amount of HK$170 million has been paid to the Vendor
and approximately HK$10 million has been set aside for
final payment of consideration. Details of the acquisition
are set out in the Company'’s circular dated 12 November
2010.

The transaction is to be accounted for as acquisition of
business as the companies acquired constitutes a
business under HKFRS 3 “Business Combinations” The
companies acquired principally engaged in provision of
services including primary property agency and related
consultancy services to real estate developers on their
primary residential, retail and commercial properties
projects in the PRC. The fair value of the assets and
liabilities acquired will be assessed as at the date of
completion of the acquisition. At the date of approval
for issuance of these consolidated financial statements,
the valuation of each component of the identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed is still on-going
and subject to finalisation, which involve the work by
independent valuer. The directors of the Company are
of the opinion that such valuation would not be available
at the date of approval of these consolidated financial
statements.

On 21 January 2011, the Group has completed
redemption of the July 2011 Convertible Notes at a
discount of 3% of the outstanding principal amount of
HK$70,000,000. The purchase consideration has been
satisfied by cash. After the redemption, no convertible
notes were outstanding.

(iii)
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36.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36. AN TR FTEMMBELATFNE

SUBSIDIARIES OFTHE

COMPANY

Place/country of

Percentage of
issued capital

incorporation/ Particulars of held by
Name of subsidiaries operation issued capital the Company  Principal activities
ENNGIESE ]
BRI
il NCEE BEwY BR ERITRAFE REABAL EEEH
Century 21 Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong 3,880,000 ordinary 100%  Provision of franchise, property
shares of agency and related services
HK$1 each in Hong Kong and Macau
RN EBERATF & 3,880,0000% & A I & EEBERRMIRMASFREEHE
BT LRk WERERBARY
Century 21 Property Agency Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100%  Provision of property agency
Limited of HK$1 each and related services in
Hong Kong
R MERR AT BR REREEBS 1T EEBRENEREREBRS
ZERR
Century 21 Surveyors Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 100%  Provision of property project
of HK$1 each consulting, property agency
and related services
21 ETAERAA] 0 100k BREEES 1T EEBRBMFIELFH
ZERR WMEREREBRY
Jet Fame Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100%  Trading of toy, gift and
of HK$1 each premium products
HEERAA &R REREEEE 1T A BokEnEnEE
ZERR
Kennex Investments Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100%  Property holding
of HK$1 each
REREERLA BE REREEES 1T RENR
EBR
Kingbox Investments Limited British Virgin Islands/ 1 ordinary share 100%*  Investment holding

Hong Kong of US$1 each
XBRZES /A% 1RSREE1ET REER
ZERR
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36.PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 36. X AT EMBRAFE @
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE
COMPANY (Continued)
Percentage of
Place/country of issued capital
incorporation/ Particulars of held by
Name of subsidiaries operation issued capital the Company  Principal activities
LUNGIESE -]
550
il NG KEwE EX ERITRAFE REBAL FEEE
Prosper Overseas Limited Hong Kong 2 ordinary shares 100%*  Investment holding
of HK$1 each
EHEIMNER AT Bt 2REREEES 1T REER
ZEER
Smart Arrow Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100%  Provision of property agency
of HK$1 each and related services, security
trading and investment
BEBRAA B REBREEES T REMERBRBERE -
LB HHEERKRE
Wiz Investments Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100%*  Security trading and investment
of HK$1 each
BRMREER AT B REBREEES T FREERRE
EBR
Wiz Limited Hong Kong 1 ordinary share 100%*  Provision of management
of HK$1 each services to the Group
BRMBRAA B REBREEES T MAKERAERRE
EBR
Yanyan Force Limited Hong Kong 100 ordinary shares 60%  Trading of toy, gift and
of HK$1 each premium products
MEBRA A B 100k BREEES 1T oA BahkBnERER
EBR
# Issued capital held directly by the Company & RAREEFAEETRA
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group as at R DNEERBEANEEZEENEER
31 December 2010 and 2009 which, in the opinion of the EXEFE I AESBR_E—ZTFER-TTN
Directors, principally affected the results or assets of the FHZA=+T—HZWBAR - EERE ' 17
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the HEAMH B AR ZFIEHERERBRILE °
opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive
length.
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at RAFERBEN B R BB TEAERSE

the end of the year.
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Financial Summary

MBREE

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group for the last

five financial years is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

AREBBAREETREEZEE - BEME
BERaaT

BZ+=-BA=+—H

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

—BEEXE —EZEF —BEEN\FE —ZETAF —E-ZF

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BRI BT BT BT T

Revenue I 2§ 132,632 132,987 119,586 179,550 219,960

Loss before tax B 7 A &5 18 (36,457) (74,799) (205,937) (143,729) (239,881)
Income tax TS %

(expense)/credit (X)) HE% (76) (171) 77 (559) (2,624)
Loss for the year KEEEE (36,533) (74,970) (205,860) (144,288) (242,505)
Attributable to: FE{h :

Owners of the Company AKX A#EA A (36,610) (73,579) (205,860) (144,288) (242,505)

Non-controlling interests ~ FEIZE G AE 25 77 (1,391) — — -

(36,533) (74,970) (205,860) (144,288) (242,505)

At 31 December

R+=—BA=+—8
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
—EERF E2EELF ZEENF T2 NF —E-ZHF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BET I BT BET I BT T
Total assets BEBT 126,653 262,708 309,911 409,703 251,268
Total liabilities BEAR (57,039) (15,074) (253,458) (170,054) (201,157)
Total equity R 69,614 247634 56,453 239,649 50,111

Attributable to: FE{h :

Owners of the Company  ARQA#EA A 68,152 247634 56,453 239,649 50,111
Non-controlling interests ~ FEIZEAG A 25 1,462 — — — -
69,614 247634 56,453 239,649 50,111
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